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lectricit y has become
such a part of our

e ve r yd a y l i ve s t h a t we c a n’ t
really imagine life w ithout
it. Its ubiquit y is such that
we rarely even think about its
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availabilit y; we simply en joy
its benef its without giving it
any thought.
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lectricit y is used to cook
our food, heat and cool

our homes, clean our clothes,
heat our water and keep our
lights burning. It enriches
our lives, puts the world at
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our f ingertips and helps us to
st ay connected w ith our loved
ones and the world beyond our
borders. It powers computers,
T Vs , s m a r t p h o n e s a n d a l l
those other technologies
that are changing the way we
connect with the world.

E

lect ricit y also powers the
homes, farms, schools

and businesses that make
our communities unique and
vibrant. Erongo R ED works
hard to ensure electricit y is
there for you, each and ever y
d a y.
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N$3.5 M

2016/17

Highlights
36%

Erongo RED reached a milestone during the
reporting year: revenue hit the N$1 billion mark.
Company revenue increased
by 14% from N$986,559,802 in
the previous reporting year to
N$1,123,246,647 in the current
financial year.

N$1.1 BILLION
REVENUE

able to the
Net cash avail
company remained stable,
although significant changes
within the different categories
were observed.

+14%

N$150 M

INVESTED IN TRAINING

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

Erongo RED invested N$3.5 million in training
and organisational development initiatives
during the reporting period.

The customer satisfaction index of 81% reflects the percentage of customers that indicated they are satisfied with Erongo RED’s
service delivery.

81%

FEMALES IN WORKFORCE

STAKEHOLDER MEETINGS

Erongo RED continues to promote the empower
ment of women in the workplace. Currently, 31
percent of our management team are females,
while 36 percent of our total workforce are
females.

Erongo RED values all its stakeholders and held
31 stakeholder engagement meetings in 2016/17.
Meetings were held with farmers and businesses to
get their feedback on how the company could further contribute to the region’s development needs.

31

UPGRADING OF NETWORK

KILOWATT-HOUR SALES

Maintaining and upgrading the Erongo RED distri
bution network is essential to a reliable electricity
supply. Approximately N$150 million was invested
in maintenance and upgrades of the network.

Erongo RED’s kilowatt-hour (kW) unit sales have
increased from 437,447,013 units sold in the
previous reporting year to 457,458,406 units, repre
senting a 4.5 percent increase.

+4.5%

14.1%
N$5.5 M

1.7%
56.4%

N$1.4 M

26.5%
N$15.1 M

GROWTH IN REVENUE: 2012/13 TO 2016/17
SUBSIDISING VULNERABLE
COMMUNITY MEMBERS

N$1,200,000,000
N$1,000,000,000

Pensioners paying by conventional method (monthly
accounts): subsidised to the amount of N$15,155,356
Pensioners paying by pre-paid method: subsidised to
the amount of N$1,412,407
Pre-paid (up to 30 amperes) customers: subsidised to
the amount of N$5,563,497

N$800,000,000
N$600,000,000

1.3%
SPONSORSHIPS TO SUPPORT
COMMUNITIES
Community Development		

Environment

Education and Training		

Events and Functions

Sport Development

N$400,000,000
N$200,000,000

2012/13
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2013/14

2014/15

REVENUE

2015/16

2016/17

22,500

PRE-PAID METERS

SUBSIDISING TARIFFS

Erongo RED subsidised the installation of prepaid meters with connections up to 30 amperes,
making it a popular option among customers. To
date 22,500 pre-paid meters have been installed.

Erongo RED subsidised tariffs to pensioners and
low income customers to the amount of N$22
million, benefiting 17,000 customers, of whom
5,262 are registered as pensioners.

N$22 M
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Our vision is to provide electricity to all by 2020.
Our mission is to distribute and supply affordable,
reliable and accessible electricity in the Erongo Region.

About

Erongo RED

Our values are
integrity, commitment,
empowerment,
accountability,
customer focus and

WHO WE ARE
Erongo RED, as the Erongo Regional Electricity Distributor
Company (Pty) Ltd is known in common parlance, was
established in 2005 with a mandate to distribute and
supply electricity to consumers throughout the Erongo
Region, as well as connect as many new users to the
network as possible, in accordance with Government’s 2030
development goals.
The company was formed by merging a number of electricity
suppliers and distributors in the region, namely the munici
palities of Walvis Bay, Swakopmund, Henties Bay and
Omaruru, the town councils of Karibib, Usakos and Arandis,
the village council of Uis, as well as strategic shareholders,
the Erongo Regional Council and NamPower. They are all
shareholders of Erongo RED.
The drive to consolidate the Namibian electricity
distribution industry is a Government initiative motivated
by the policy drivers embodied in the 1998 White Paper on
energy policy. A key motivating factor behind this drive was
the deterioration of electricity distribution assets in small
towns and rural areas which were not properly maintained
due to increased economic pressure on local authorities.

teamwork.
The consolidation was carried out to pool human resources
and operational capital to provide a stable supply of regio
nally available and affordable electricity through economies
of scale.
The company carries distribution and supply licenses which
are valid until 2030. Aside from its main distribution busi
ness, Erongo RED also owns and operates a 220-kilowatt
wind generator at “Mile 7” near Walvis Bay. This asset was
funded by a grant from Danida (Royal Danish Embassy) and
was installed in 2005.
Erongo RED operates under the fixed regulations of the Elec
tricity Control Board of Namibia and it owns and manages
the electricity distribution network in Erongo Region.
Since becoming operational in 2005, Erongo RED has con
cen
trated on the development of the company towards
self-sufficiency and to streamline operating functions and
processes. Erongo RED now sells electricity at a price which
reflects the actual cost of distribution and has widely esta
blished itself in the region. The company’s focus has now
shifted to the refinement of the business, extending access
to electricity, improving customer service and further deve
loping sustainable operations.

5
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About Erongo RED

What we do

HARNESSING RENEWABLE ENERGY

SUMMARY OF OUR MAIN ACTIVITIES

Erongo RED supplies
electricity to the
Erongo Region so that
residents in both urban
and rural areas enjoy
improved quality of
life, businesses can
expand and create
employment, and
bulk consumers
have the electricity
infrastructure
necessary to thrive.
Together, these factors
create an environment
conducive to attracting
investment to the
region.

Our main activities can be summarised as follows:
•

Purchase electricity

•

Distribute and supply electricity to customers (residents, govern
ment institutions and businesses) in the Erongo Region

•

Maintain the electricity network in the Erongo Region

•

Expand the network through investment to accommodate
future demand, and

•

Explore renewable energy.

The company has a license for embedded power generation by a
220-kilowatt wind generator, which is the first network-connected
wind generator in Namibia. In addition, 167 customers supply
surplus energy in the network from their own solar-generated
systems.
The Lithops intake sub-station near Arandis will upgrade the grid
to 33-kilovolts supplied by NamPower, while construction of the
recently commissioned photovoltaic Arandis Solar Power Plant
com
men
ced in the year under review. It is projected that this
3.4-megawatt plant will produce 8.3 million kW hours of emissionfree electricity over the course of its 25-year lifespan, and save
Erongo RED N$5.8 million per annum, or N$127 million over the
same period.
Erongo RED is also investigating the feasibility of utilising biomass
technology at Swakopmund and Walvis Bay, or alternatively only
at Walvis Bay. The company envisages developing a plant with a
generation capacity between five and ten megawatts. The back
bone of this initiative is development of a plant that uses biomass
waste as fuel.

AN OVERVIEW OF OUR CUSTOMER BASE
Erongo RED serves over 37,000 active customers, of which 90 per
cent are residential. Of these, just over 50 percent of electricity con
sumption is measured with conventional meters and 36 percent is
distributed via pre-paid meters.
Approximately 58 percent of Erongo RED’s revenue is generated
from its business activities and high-volume customers. Three per
cent of its revenue comes from institutional customers while the
remaining 38 percent comes from residential customers.
These figures are in stark contrast to the number of customers in
each category in that 89 percent of the customers generate 38 per
cent of the revenue and 10 percent of the customers (businesses
and bulk) generate 58 percent of the revenue.

Usakos, 0.80%

Uis, 0.20%

Karibib, 1.40%

Together, Walvis Bay and Swakopmund account for the lion’s share
of Erongo RED’s revenue – 84 percent – as the majority of customers
are located in these towns. Just short of 60 percent of Erongo RED’s
revenue is derived from consumers in Walvis Bay alone, while 42
percent of the customers are located there and 66 percent of all energy
is consumed in the town.
Another 24.5 percent of revenue is generated in Swakopmund from 35
percent of the total number of customers.
The remaining 16.5 percent of revenue is derived from the remaining 23
percent of customers in other towns, villages and localities.

Pre-paid customers,
14%

Omaruru, 1.60%

Business, single
phase, 3%
Business, 3 phase,
12%

Pensioners, 2%

Swakopmund,
24.50%
Erongo Regional
Council, 0.20%

Domestic
customers,
18%
Arandis, 1.00%
Others, 0.20%
Henties Bay,
2.30%

REVENUE BY TOWN, PERCENTAGE, 2016/17

Walvis Bay,
59.50%

Large power users,
48%

Institutions, 3.35%

REVENUE BY CUSTOM RE CATEGORY, PERCENTAGE, 2016/17
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Namibia has a total installed, electrical generation capacity of 529 MW, while its peak
demand for the financial year 2016/17 was 641 MW.
Namibia’s national power utility, NamPower, imports as much as 60 percent of its energy
requirement from Zimbabwe, Zambia, South Africa and Mozambique on a day-aheadmarket (DAM) basis, which is sourced from other producers in the region.
As the exclusive buyer of electricity, NamPower effectively generates electricity from its
own plants, i.e. Ruacana, Van Eck and Paratus, from various renewable energy sources
and re-sells it to transmission customers like mines, REDs, and a number of municipalities
and water-pumping schemes.

KEY INDUSTRY PLAYERS
The governance structure pertaining to electricity generation, supply and distribution in Namibia is as follows:
The Ministry of Mines and Energy – the policy maker

NamPower – the national utility

The Ministry is the entity which originates and determines all policies
applicable to the supply and distribution of electricity in Namibia.

The heart of NamPower’s business is the generation, transmission
and trading of electricity, both on a regional level, within the
Southern African Power Pool (SAPP), the largest multilateral energy
platform on the continent, and on a national level in Namibia. It
supplies bulk electricity to Regional Electricity Distributors (REDs),
but also to mines, farms and local authorities in Namibia, where
REDs are not operational.

The Electricity Control Board – the regulatory authority

Perspective on our

Industry

The well-being of Namibia’s economy relies on
accessible, reliable and affordable electricity.
Erongo RED currently purchases about 98 percent
of the electricity it distributes from NamPower
based on the single-buyer model.
It is a well-known fact that Namibia, like most
countries in the SADC region, currently underproduce domestically.

At national level the Electricity Control Board (ECB) is the regulatory
authority which oversees electricity supply throughout the country. This
authority was created in 2000 through the promulgation of Electricity Act
2 of 2000 (this legislation was later replaced by Electricity Act 4 of 2007).
Its core mandate is to exercise control over the electricity supply industry
carrying primary responsibility for regulating generation, transmission, dis
tribution, supply, import and export of electricity, setting tariffs and regu
lating licences.
The ECB’s role in the Namibian Electricity Supply Industry is to increase
economic competitiveness and efficiency, improve access to electricity, in
crease security of supply, promote investment and growth, ensure sustain
ability, alleviate resource constraints and ensure appropriate governance.

The REDs – the electricity distributors
Regional Electricity Distributors (REDs) were created to distribute
electricity in regional areas in order to consolidate the Namibian
electricity distribution industry. This Government initiative was
motivated by the policy drivers embodied in the 1998 White Paper on
energy policy. It was considered that five regional distributors would
function more effectively to control economies of scale, create
uniformity of standards and tariffs, and effectively improve capacity
and customer interaction. The scheme will ultimately lead to greater
efficiency of delivery, than would have been possible under a central
body operating countrywide.

ERONGO RED’S SHAREHOLDERS
Erongo RED’s shareholders are the municipalities of Walvis Bay,
Swakopmund, Henties Bay and Omaruru, the town councils of Karibib,

Usakos and Arandis, the village council of Uis, as well as strategic
shareholders, the Erongo Regional Council and NamPower.

Walvis Bay

Swakopmund

Usakos

Karibib

Henties Bay

Omaruru

Arandis

Uis
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Board of

Directors

I

n compliance with

Erongo RED - Power to the people

The Board and Erongo RED endorse and accept
the implementation of good, corporate-governance
principles as they are currently applicable to the
company. The Board, in concert with its committees,
strives to act as a conscientious custodian of
corporate governance at Erongo RED, ensuring that
the company is a responsible corporate citizen.

t h e S h a r e h o l d e r s’

Mr TN Nambala
Chairperson

Agreement, Erongo
RED is guided
and governed by a
Board of Directors.
Currently the Erongo
RED Board has
seven non-executive
directors and an

Mr L //Garoeb

Mr M Skini

Mr EM Wetha

Mr R Junias

Vice-Chairperson

Member

Member

Member

Mr FA
Hartzenberg

Ms YZN
Nambahu

Ms HM
Gebhardt

Mr F Mbango

Member

Member

Member

alternative director
for each director.
The Chief Executive
Officer serves as the
ninth member of the
Board, as a nonvoting ex officio
director.

Chief Executive
Officer
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Introducing our

Management
Team
Erongo RED is managed by a group

Fessor Mbango

Freddie Vries

Rudolf Ouseb

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Manager:
Finance &
Administration

Executive Manager:
Network Engineering

of dedicated professionals, who are
determined to steer the company
into a successful future for the
benefit of the customers it serves,
as well as for the people in its
employment.
In Namibia, Erongo Region has
become a key driver of the economy
with its rapidly expanding mining,

Claude Tjizo

Nico Niemand

Monia Tjongarero Bennie Nangolo

Executive Manager:
Network Operations
& Maintenance

Executive Manager:
Supply Business

Senior Manager:
Human Capital &
Corporate Services

logistics, fishing, tourism and

Senior Manager:
Business Strategy
& Performance
Management System

related industries. As a dynamic
and efficient, commercialised
distributor of electricity, Erongo
RED has firmly established itself in
the region as a vital enabler for the
benefit of Namibia’s future.

Thandi !Gaoses

Karin Andima

Company Secretary/
Legal Advisor

Internal Auditor

Benjamin
Nangombe
Public Relations &
Marketing Officer
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2016/17 Review
Chairperson’s Message

Dear Partners

Mr Kahimise laid sound foundations for the further
development of Erongo RED in areas such as creating
a stable financial base, positioning the company
technically and striving to provide quality, affordable
service to our consumers, at the same time investing
in infrastructure. In short, Mr Kahimise left a healthy
company run by a professional management team
and a skilled workforce, which would ensure a smooth
line of succession.

Looking back over the past 12 years since Erongo RED’s inception, we
can be rightfully proud of what we have achieved thus far. Not only
have we grown as a company, we have cemented our relationships with

Mr Fessor Mbango, formerly the company’s Execu
tive Manager: Network Engineering, stepped into
the CEO role, initially in an acting capacity, and
then in April 2017 he was appointed CEO of Erongo
RED. Having been with the company since 2012, he
brings a wealth of electrical-engineering experience
and a strong orientation to strategic thinking to the
position.

shareholders and customers alike, and are now widely acknowledged
as an agent for positive change in the Erongo Region. It is a hardearned reputation that we have built and intend to maintain.
Access, quality, availability and efficiency are deeply
rooted in the heart of Erongo RED’s business and are
the fundamental elements on which it has built its
identity.
During the past 12 years Erongo RED has dedicated
its vision and determination to anticipate the major
strategic changes that have been thrust upon it by a
continuously-growing region, by putting in place the
resources and structures that ensure the company
fulfils its mandate.
The reporting year marked an important milestone:
for the first time the company posted earnings in
excess of N$1 billion.
Growing from proverbially humble beginnings in
2005, Erongo RED has taken charge of its destiny
and has embarked on a growth path that has seen
its asset base grow from N$3 million at its inception
to N$1.6 billion at the end of the reporting year.
Indeed, this is a proud achievement.
Because the capacity of the network must stay
abreast of the growth of population and industry in
the Erongo Region, several large-scale capital pro
jects are currently underway.
These projects include the Swakopmund Bulk Up
grade, the Lithops intake sub-station near Arandis
(which will see the upgrade to 33 kilovolts from Nam
Power) and the ongoing rural electrification project,
as well as the upgrading of the Swakopmund network
to an N-1 redundancy.
In the reporting year, approximately N$150 million
has been invested in these and other projects in
order to expand and maintain the network. The
project portfolio comprises a total of 61 projects, of
which a number may span several years, primarily
because of lead times inherent to projects requiring
NamPower’s involvement.

Balancing the three elements of the energy
‘trilemma’ — security of supply, cost of electricity
and environmental sustainability — is a challenge
that effects the dynamic environment in which the
energy industry operates.

In conclusion, I would like to express my appreciation
to the Minister of Mines and Energy, the Honourable
Obed Kandjoze, to the CEO of the Electricity Control
Board, Ms Foibe Namene, and the Managing Director
of NamPower, Mr Simson Haulofu, for their con
tinued guidance and commitment to Erongo RED
and the industry.

With Walvis Bay in particular, and Erongo Region
in general, standing as major industrial growthpoints in the country, the strategic impact of
sufficient energy supply — and the professional
management thereof — cannot be underestimated.
By the same token, the importance of electricity
to the transformation of lives in Namibia’s rural
communities can no longer be ignored.

Similarly, I would like to offer a special word of appre
ciation to our shareholders for their confidence and
support.
Likewise, I wish to thank my colleagues on the Board
for their unwavering commitment, as well as to the
CEO, his management team and staff for their dedi
cation and hard work.

Finding a balance between the needs and aspira
tions of the entire region is the ever-present chal
lenge that Erongo RED faces on a daily basis. As the
company continues to invest in the interest of future
performance of its business, we strive to meet the
challenges of the energy trilemma.
In November 2016, CEO Mr Robert Kahimise
informed the Board of his wish to resign in order to
accept an offer to become CEO of the City of Wind
hoek. We want to express our appreciation to Mr
Kahimise for his strong leadership during the four
years he served Erongo RED as CEO. He made signi
ficant contributions to the region’s energy industry
and under his leadership the company produced
excellent returns for its shareholders, helping esta
blish Erongo RED’s place as one of Namibia’s leading
regional distributors.
Throughout Mr Kahimise’s tenure as CEO, he remained
committed to the communities and customers we
serve and to the company’s personnel. This commit
ment has included putting in place measures to
cushion the impact of price increases, with special
attention given to economically challenged residents
who still pay the lowest rates for electricity in the
country.

“

TN Nambala
Chairperson: Board of Directors
30 November 2017

Access, quality, availability and
efficiency are deeply rooted in the

heart of Erongo RED’s business and are the

fundamental elements on which it has built its
identity.
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The

CEO’s
report

2016/17 Review

The 2016/17 financial period was a successful
one for Erongo RED. The company has not only
continued to consolidate its efforts to make access
to electricity a reality for countless citizens in the
Erongo Region, it has also shaped a company
ethos that refines how it achieves its goals.
There is much that deserves comment, but let me begin by saying, as the
new CEO of Erongo RED, I am grateful for the efforts of my predecessors, Mr
Gerhard Coeln and Mr Robert Kahimise, who established a strong foundation
and assembled a unified and highly competent team that works within a
strong, corporate-governance framework.

“

Erongo
RED is now

widely acknowledged
as an agent for
change in the Erongo
Region — a hardearned reputation
that we have
all intention to
work tirelessly to
maintain.

Financial and operational performance
In terms of earnings, it was a banner year for the company, as for the first time
it broke through the N$1-billion ceiling in revenue generated.
Though we are, of course, very proud of this achievement, we are aware that
we have been operating in very difficult times seen economically. Keeping our
responsibility towards our shareholders and customers in mind, we have a duty
to safeguard the long-term sustainability of the business and continue to ensure
that Erongo RED complies at all times with accepted business practices.
Erongo RED’s kilowatt-hour (kWh) unit sales have increased from 437,447,013
units sold in the previous reporting year to 457,458,406 units, representing a 4.5
percent increase. The increase in units sold is mainly due to annual growth in
Walvis Bay and Swakopmund.
The company’s gross profit decreased from N$173.9 million to N$165.4 million
for the reporting period. This 4.9 percent is a result of continuous improvement
in our spending patterns and a strict adherence to the Procurement Policy and
Procedures, as well as prudent cost-containment measures that the company
has put in place. Our profits before tax have decreased from N$62 million to
N$33 million, representing a 47 percent decrease, and profit for the year from
N$45 million to N$22 million, which were primarily driven by the ongoing
investment in strategic projects.
Due to ongoing investment to expand our network, Erongo RED’s asset base
has grown from N$3 million at our inception, to N$1.6 billion in the current
reporting year (2015/16: N$1.4 billion), as mentioned by the Chairperson.
With several, large capital projects under way, cost-saving initiatives have been
initiated throughout all business units and policies and tools have been installed
to ensure that the company was as lean and responsive as it needed to be.

Fessor Mbango
Chief Executive Officer
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Our people, our biggest asset

Customer satisfaction

Network expansions

In the context of the large-scale projects in which Erongo RED is currently
engaged, the developments and achievements made by the Human Capital
Business Unit should be noted.

Customer satisfaction is, of course, a primary aim and I am pleased to say
that Erongo RED has made great strides in this regard.

Maintenance and upgrade is crucial to the seamless distribution of
electricity to end users. Walvis Bay and Swakopmund, in particular, have
experienced massive growth during the past five years, forcing Erongo
RED to focus on network expansion projects in these towns. Since 2005,
over N$400 million has been spent on network maintenance and upgrade
in various towns in the Erongo Region. More detailed information is
provided later in this report, but in summary it is worthwhile highlighting
a few major projects.

Erongo RED would not be able to fulfil on its promise to deliver electricity
to the Erongo Region and connecting those previously not on the grid
without its very capable employees, the company’s biggest asset.
The financial year 2016/17 saw the adoption of the Human Capital Charter,
which established the parameters of service provided by the Business
Unit, and which makes benchmarking and performance assessment
easier to carry out.
A comprehensive workforce review was also prepared which outlined
all employment policies (including disciplinary and critical policies),
interventions, job profiles and gradings assessed. The effort was a
much-needed but intensive undertaking which involved meetings with
all employees, which produced upward revisions for 30 percent of all our
employment gradings.
Besides the fact that the company relies on its workforce to enable it
to fulfil its mandate, it is of utmost importance to management that all
employees are satisfied in their work. Equally important is Erongo RED’s
ability to attract the calibre of employees that it needs. We strive to be an
employer of choice in the region, and are pleased that we are perceived
as such.

Initiatives carried out by the Supply Business Unit and the Public
Relations and Marketing section, such as the establishment of the call
centre, the rolling out of social media and a website by which customers
can lodge complaints, have fostered dialogue between the company and
its customers.
These initiatives, as well as continued stakeholder dialogue, enables the
company to make an accurate assessment of how it is doing in terms
of service delivery and to react swiftly when the situation demands.
Shortly after its establishment, Erongo RED witnessed some customer
dissatisfaction with service-delivery levels. The situation had serious
implications for perceptions of Erongo RED in the marketplace.
It gives me great satisfaction to report that the hard work we’ve done over
the last couple of years has paid off: service levels have vastly improved
and our relationship with customers is now perceived to be constructive.
The effort has been recognised: in 2014, 2015 and 2016 we won a
Professional Management Review Africa (PMR Africa) Diamond Arrow
Award in the category Electrical Contractor Suppliers in recognition of
our contribution to economic growth and development stimulation in
Namibia.
In 2015 we were awarded the Best Customer Service Award for the best
customer services in the electrical category from the Customer Service
Management Association (CSMA).

The Walvis Bay Bulk Upgrade Project, at a cost of N$570 million and cofunded by NamPower and Erongo RED, is completed. The second phase
of the Swakopmund Bulk Upgrade Project, at a cost of N$193.75 million,
has also commenced and is scheduled for completion in 2020. These are
the major investments Erongo RED has made since 2013. The investment
is crucial to the company’s ability to stay ahead of burgeoning demand
in the region and should ensure that the Erongo RED is able to distribute
electricity as mandated by the shareholders. It is on this capability that
development of the region, as well as the country, depends.
Other developments such as the Lithops intake sub-station near Arandis
will upgrade the grid to 33 kilovolts from NamPower, while the com
missioning of the N$80 million photovoltaic Arandis Solar Power Plant got
under way in the year under review. This 3.4 megawatt plant is projected to
produce 8.3 million kW hours of emission-free electricity over the course
of its 25-year lifespan, and save Erongo RED N$5.8 million per annum, or
N$127 million over that period.
In addition, our Rural Electrification Project, which is a self-actualised mani
festation of the company’s goal to electrify communities currently not yet
on the grid, saw N$12 million spent to connect communities in the Daures
Constituency. In all, over 600 houses were connected to the grid in 2016.

Other sites have been identified for connection in the coming year,
including Utuseb village just outside Walvis Bay, which is home of the Top
naar community.
We are constantly adapting and reinforcing commitments to our share
holders, stakeholders and network users by fulfilling our mission in a
transparent, impartial and professional manner.
Erongo RED has safe and highly effective tools at its disposal. These are
suited to the realities of our time and are wielded by teams that are ever
mindful of the importance of their work.

Conclusion
In conclusion, I want to thank the Board of Directors for their valuable
guidance and to our shareholders for their trust and confidence in my
team and myself.
A special word of thanks goes to each and every employee for their hard
work and dedication, without which, none of our achievements could have
been realised.
And finally, I want to thank our customers for their loyal support. You
are the pillars of our company and on your behalf we are proud to be an
agent of change, contributing significantly to the growth and long-term
prosperity of our beautiful Erongo Region.

Fessor Mbango
Chief Executive Officer
30 November 2017
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BULK CUSTOMERS
Crucial to the success and long-term viability of any industry
or business is not only the access to electricity, but also the
reliability of the supply.

Our valued

Customers

The Erongo Region has been identified in the Government’s
Haram
bee Development Plan as a focus area in which
Namibia’s economic growth will be driven, both through
industries such as mining, fishing, agriculture and various
natio
nal infra
structure development projects like the
harbour expansion in Walvis Bay. A dependable supply of
electricity is absolutely paramount for such development,
and is also crucial from a foreign-investment perspective.
In addition, the influx of people seeking employment at the
mines has put severe pressure on the electricity network,
which in some areas (such as Kuisebmond in Walvis Bay)
was already close to reaching full capacity. In response,
Erongo RED has been upgrading the network since 2013.

From a regional perspective, since municipalities and local
authorities throughout Erongo are tasked with ensuring
basic needs of residents by the Namibian Constitution,
being able to rely on service-delivery partners such as
Erongo RED, makes fulfilling their responsibility a lot easier.
Erongo RED’s ongoing efficient and reliable supply of elec
tricity and systematic expansion of the network to connect
more households, makes the company an important agent
of change for the Erongo Region, improving people’s lives
in a significant way. It must also not be forgotten that
an efficient and reliable electricity supply attracts and
makes investment feasible, simultaneously facilitating the
creation of new employment opportunities.

Efficient
Our customers are the reason we exist. All our effort and activities are
aimed at delivering the best customer service possible. We set the bar high
for ourselves and every day we strive to improve on yesterday.

Convenience
To ensure that its customers continue to enjoy a beneficial
experience through accessible electricity, Erongo RED
has established a number of initiatives. The company
has established a call centre and a control centre which
customers can contact when they require assistance.
The company is also busy with the conversion of its electricity
meters to smart meters which can be monitored remotely.
The change will make meter monitoring easier, less disruptive
and more convenient than it has been in the past.

Access to electricity
The effects of the global economic downturn are still felt
in Namibia, making cost and expenditure control a crucial
concern to the majority of Namibians.
Erongo RED made a strategic decision for the benefit and
convenience of its consumers, rolling out the installation
of free pre-paid electricity meters to pensioners and lowincome segments of our community. Customers are now
free to choose the pre-paid option, allowing them to closely
monitor their electricity usage and control their expenditure.

electricity
supply attracts

RESIDENTIAL HOUSEHOLDS
One of the primary responsibilities of any government
and its agencies is to meet the basic needs of its citizens.
Erongo RED distributes electricity to customers through its
robust network and is committed to connecting a growing
number of households, thereby improving the lives of more
and more Namibians in the Erongo Region.

and reliable

Erongo RED subsidises the installation of the pre-paid meters
with connections up to 30 amperes, subject to the kind of
erven being serviced. This has made the pre-paid option
popular among customers. In fact, to date, 22,500 pre-paid
meters have been installed. The free installation of pre-paid
meters will be offered only to pensioners and customers on
debt-management programme for the 2016/17 financial year.
A total of 28 third-party prepayment vending points have
been set up strategically in various towns and settlements.
Customers may now purchase pre-paid electricity 24 hours
a day, seven days a week at these vending points.
Plans are underway to make the purchase of pre-paid
electricity accessible via mobile communication, as well as
through the Erongo RED website.

Tariffs
Given the difficult economic climate, the price of electricity
is of utmost importance to consumers. What differentiates
Erongo RED from other distributors is the fact that the
company has decided to absorb part of the annual tariff
increases.
In our endeavour to provide affordable electricity to house
holds, domestic consumers can now opt for the best
solution by choosing either pre-paid or conventional supply
on a staggered tariff system for vulnerable groups, where
tariffs are now as low as N$1.34 per unit for the first 150
units. This means that consumers are now empowered to
take control of their electricity bill.

and makes
investment
feasible,
simultaneously
facilitating the
creation of new
employment
opportunities.
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Erongo RED installed
11,285 free pre-paid meters
to encourage low-income
earners and low consuming
customers to convert from
Erongo RED values its customers and understands that there are
segments of the community which struggle with the costs associated with
connection to the network. Being deprived of electricity would affect the
people in these communities in obvious ways, leaving them vulnerable to
crime and without the comforts of modern living.

VULNERABLE COMMUNITY MEMBERS
Pursuing its goal to make access to electricity attainable to as many
people as possible, Erongo RED took a strategic decision to offer
vulnerable members of the community, such as pensioners and lowincome families, a subsidised tariff.

2016/2017

Of that amount, pensioners paying by conventional method (monthly ac
counts) benefited to the amount of N$15 million, pensioners paying by
pre-paid method to the amount of N$1.4 million and pre-paid customers
consuming up to 30 amperes, N$5.5 million (see bottom left chart).

22,131,262

2015/2016

In addition, Erongo RED installed 11,285 free pre-paid meters to encourage
low-income earners and low-consuming customers to convert from con
ventional electricity to pre-paid. This measure enables customers to
benefit from the subsidised and pensioner tariffs.

14,595,243

2014/2015

During the 2016/17 period, the company subsidised tariffs to pensioners
and pre-paid customers using less than 30 amperes to the amount of N$22
million to benefit 17,000 customers, of whom 5,262 are registered as pen
sioners. This is nearly a four-fold increase in subsidies compared with five
years ago (see graph on the left).

11,483,351

ELECTRIFICATION OF RURAL AREAS
2013/2014
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This disparity, and despite the fact that the Government’s rural electri
fication efforts had not yet made sufficient impact, meant that it would
behove Erongo RED to improve the status of rural electrification in the
region.

N$5,563,497
N$5,563,497
N$5,563,497
N$5,563,497

N$15,155,356 In

support of the Government’s rural electrification programme, and during
the current reporting year, Erongo RED invested a total of N$12 million
on the electrification of rural communities in the Erongo Region. In the
Daures constituency, just over 600 households were connected to the grid:
Okombahe (245 households), Omatjete (158 households), Otjohorongo (45
households), Tubusis (112 households) and Anixab (41 households).

N$1,412,407
N$15,155,356
N$15,155,356

N$1,412,407
N$1,412,407
N$15,155,356

N$1,412,407

Pensioner Conventional

PrePaid Pensioner

PrePaid Up to 30 Amps

Pensioner
Conventional
PrePaid
Pensioner
PrePaid
UpAmps
to 30 Amps
Pensioner
Conventional
PrePaid
Pensioner
PrePaid
Up to 30

Pensioner Conventional

PrePaid Pensioner

PrePaid Up to 30 Amps

Despite the fact that the Erongo Region currently has the highest rate of
electrification in Namibia (81 percent, according to the 2010 census), the
finding of the 2010 Rural Electricity Distribution Master Plan (REDMP) was
that only around 16 percent of rural households in the region have access
to grid electricity. This interprets as 6,500 rural households having been
without electricity at that time.

Other sites in peri-urban areas were identified for electrification in the coming
financial year. This includes the Utuseb village where the Topnaar community
resides.

conventional electricity to
pre-paid. This measure
enables customers to benefit
from the subsidised and
pensioner tariffs.
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The success of service delivery to consumers while meeting the company’s targets, the expenditure
of maintaining qualified staff to accomplish Erongo RED’s complex work, the allocation of capital
investment to ensure the grid will support the electricity requirements of the region, are all factors that
need to be prioritised and translated into effective action. All these challenging processes need to be
balanced within the context of running Erongo RED responsibly as an independent, profitable business.

2016/17 Review

STRIKING A BALANCE

COST CONTAINMENT ON EVERY LEVEL

Achieving balanced delivery on its obligations and responsibilities
in an environment marked by strained economic circumstances is
not a simple task. Some expenditures, such as the special tariffs
offered to vulnerable members of the community, significantly
affect the company’s bottom line.

For the management of Erongo RED’s vehicle fleet, certain inter
ventions were put into effect during the 2016/17 financial year.

Because Erongo RED operates in a regulated environment, which,
for example, requires that the company pays a monthly surcharge
to its shareholders, and because subsidies are a critical aspect
of its business model, these expenditures need to be absorbed or
ameliorated elsewhere.

Finance &
Administration

Tracking devices were also fitted to the company’s vehicles so that
the fleet can be monitored more effectively.

A SIGNIFICANT MILESTONE
The period under review marked a significant milestone. For the
first time, the company posted earnings in excess of N$1 billion,
alongside cost-of-sales of N$957.8 million.
Though this achievement should be celebrated, essential capex
expenditure had already been committed and therefore no divi
dends were declared for the period under review.

The Finance and Administration Business Unit is responsible for financial
administration and reporting systems, stores and procurement, financial risk
management, fleet control and asset administration, financing and loan admini
stration and working capital management.
From a fiscal perspective, what shapes the conduct of Erongo RED’s business are
the obligations and responsibilities the company carries. These obligations must
be met in the context of the company’s relationship with the national electricity
generator and its legislated objective, which dictates that Erongo RED connects
as many people in the Erongo Region as possible to the electricity grid.

In the wake of a high number of vehicle collisions, albeit primarily
fender benders, defensive-driving courses were made mandatory
for all personnel authorised to drive Erongo RED vehicles. It was
hoped that this intervention would curb these accidents.

Large-scale capital projects, which include the Swakopmund Bulk
Upgrade, the Lithops intake sub-station near Arandis, ongoing rural
electrification, as well as an upgrade of the Swakopmund network
to an N-1 redundancy, are matters of priority.

“In these challenging times our overarching concern
should be the sustainability of this business. And the
single, most effective way of achieving sustainability,
is to contain costs.”
Freddie Vries
Executive Manager: Finance & Administration

The rate of population and industry growth in the Erongo Region
dictates that the capacity of the network needs to keep pace.
Zero-based budgeting was also introduced during the period
under review, with all expenditures requiring accountability and
meticulous motivation.

REIGNING IN COST

OUTSIDE FUNDING

Ensuring that the company’s systems and procedures are robust
and compliant with good business practice drives cost control.
In the period under review, several policies were examined and
overhauled.

From a historical standpoint, Erongo RED was in the admirable
position of being able to finance its own development projects.
However, due to the scale and urgency of key projects, the company
decided to source outside funding to help finance them.

The company’s Procurement Policy was amended to be more
inclusive, opening access to SMEs and BEE suppliers. Other
policies that were also examined included the Investment Policy
and the Asset Management Policy.

With the Walvis Bay Bulk Upgrade Project costing N$570 million
and Network Upgrade Project in Swakopmund costing N$193.75
million, the projected capital expenditure far outstripped Erongo
RED’s capital expenditure budget of N$192.4 million.

Regarding the latter, it was noted that ownership of a number of
properties had still not been transferred from local authorities
to the company. It was resolved to remedy this situation with
immediate effect and to update the asset register.

A loan of N$250 million was secured from the Development Bank
of Namibia, which was to be repaid within ten years at an interest
rate of approximately 11.75 percent. N$30 million was secured
from National Energy Fund and interest rate is approximately 2.5
percent. The first instalment of N$74 million has been made to
NamPower for the Swakopmund Bulk Upgrade.
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NAMIBIA DOLLAR

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

CREDIT CONTROL

Real growth of 4.5 percent has been observed in the number of units of
electricity sold, which contributed to an increase of 14 percent of reve
nues, amounting to N$1.1 billion (2015/16: N$986.5 million) for the repor
ting period.

The credit-control and risk-management division is tasked with maxi
mising the company’s cash flow and minimising financial risk for Erongo
RED.

Cost of sales increased by 18 percent to N$957.8 million (2015/16: N$812.6
million) given the annual tariff increase of NamPower of 16.7 percent over
the 2015/16 financial year.
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OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit has declined due to a reduction in gross profit, ongoing
spending on capital projects and an increase in depreciation and
amorisation expenses.

NAMIBIA DOLLAR
2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

However, the impact of continuously rising NamPower tariffs has resulted
in a further decline in the gross profit percentage, from 17.6 percent in
the previous reporting year to 14.7 percent. The main contributing factors
remain cost of sales which recorded an accelerated growth of 18 percent
compared to revenues growth of 14 percent as mentioned above, as well
as the following:
•

Subsidisation of some customer groups, and

•

Impact of increases in NamPower energy purchases.

Though Erongo RED is committed to providing access to electricity through
subsidisation of certain customer groups and by absorbing the impact of
NamPower increases, this additional pressure on profit margins — and annual
tariff concessions — must be treated with prudence.
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GROSS PROFIT
The gross profit has declined as a result of an accelerated growth of 18
percent in cost of sales compared with revenue growth of 14 percent.

The total debtors outstanding at year end stood at N$231.3 million,
which is approximately 35 percent higher than the closing balance as
at 30 June 2016.
Debt outstanding in excess of 90 days increased from N$5.1 million in
2015/16 to approximately N$17 million during the current year. The com
pany has maintained a collection rate of around 90 percent for the year.
To help defaulting, domestic customers, the company has initiated a debtmanagement strategy. This arrangement allows disconnected customers
to purchase an initial amount of pre-paid electricity as part of a systematic
repayment of their outstanding debt.
Debt management
The debt-management process continues to be a viable, alternative debtcollection tool, and a total of N$2,109,729 of outstanding debts has been
ring-fenced under debt management.

The company also recorded a drop in profits of 52 percent, amounting to
N$22 million (2015/16: N$45.1 million), which can be attributed to ongoing
expenditures on capital projects.

During the past year 24 accounts, representing a total amount of N$397,552,
have been allocated under debt management. A total of N$297,557 has been
collected for the reporting period.

The cost of electricity, local authority surcharges, salaries and wages
(directly related to revenue and cost of sales) form the largest portion of
cost of sales, and has increased from 78 percent in the reporting period
2015/16 to 80 percent of total revenues for the year under review.

Suspension process

Total operating cash has decreased by 62 percent, mainly due to prepay
ments made to NamPower for bulk upgrades.

2013/14

Debtors’ book

Erongo RED’s operating profit has decreased by 30 percent to N$51.1
million (2015/16: N$73.5 million) due to the reduction in gross profit from
17.6 percent to 14.7 percent as explained above and ongoing spending on
capital projects and an increase in depreciation and amortisation expen
ses as a result of projects capitalised.
The company’s total assets have grown by 14 percent to N$1.6 billion
(2015/16: N$1.4 billion), which was driven mainly by property, plant and
equipment, pre-payments to NamPower for bulk upgrades and other finan
cial assets.
Prognosis for the company’s financial position remains positive. However,
cautionary actions are advisable to maintain and improve its financial stan
ding and stakeholder value.

Suspension of all defaulting customers is conducted strictly according to
Erongo RED’s credit-control policy. The due date for payment of accounts
is the seventh of each month or the next working day, should the seventh
fall on a public holiday or on a weekend.
Repayment arrangements are permitted during this period and no
arrangements after the due date can be accepted, as the cut-off list is
compiled immediately after that date.
Monthly statements are issued. However, a customer will not be relieved
of the obligation to settle their account by the due date, even though they
have not received a statement. The company has introduced an smsnotification service to all domestic customers on the cut-off list.
During the previous reporting period, the day-sales-outstanding (DSO)
ranged between 46 and 57 days. During the current financial year, DSO
improved to between 45 and 50 days.
The DSO is negatively influenced by poor performance of significant
customers under the current economic crises. Closer working relationships
are being fostered with these customers as key stakeholders.

RISK MANAGEMENT

NAMIBIA DOLLAR
2016/17
2016/17

Erongo RED has a risk-management framework in place which is in line
with industry best practices. The framework is stakeholder value-based,
organisationally embedded, supported, assured and reviewed on a con
tinual basis.

2015/16
2015/16

2014/15
2014/15

Our major categories of risk are financial, operational and strategic
or linked to Government customers. During its annual review process,
Erongo RED identified 37 strategically important risks in terms of the
company’s 2015-2019 strategic plan.
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GROWTH IN REVENUE
Revenue grew by 14 percent to N1.1 billion while cost of sales increased
by 18 percent to N$957.8 million.
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CURRENT RATIO
The current ratio declined due to the reclassification of
prepayments to intangible assets (right-of-use) and an increase
in customer deposits for projects awaiting completion.
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DEBT RATIO
The debt ratio increased due to the full draw down of the Deve
lopment Bank of Namibia loan.
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Network Engineering
“Keeping the lights on”

Energy suppliers and distributors in Namibia operate in an extremely
challenging environment, albeit one that also offers exciting
opportunities.

“In the Network Engineering Business Unit, all
planning and design of network upgrading and
expansion occurs. Timely planning of upgrades
and expansion of Erongo RED’s distribution
network are essential to ensure that supply matches
demand.

Three global trends impact electricity industries around the world. These
are ensuring supply in the face of ever-mounting demand, battling the
effects of climate change, and meeting the challenge of massive global
urbanisation.

Rudolf Ouseb
Executive Manager: Network Engineering

In addition to these challenges, Erongo RED,
like the other electricity distributors in Namibia,
must come to terms with aging infrastructure,
rapidly growing, local economies, the handicap
under which communities not yet connected to
the grid suffer, and the provision of affordable
electricity in the face of steeply escalating costs
of electricity generation and distribution.
It therefore stands to reason that timely planning
of upgrades and expansion of the company’s
distribution network are essential to ensure that
supply matches demand.
Planning, designing, managing and commis
sioning most of Erongo RED’s network expansion
projects lie in the hands of its engineers, men
and women who have developed formidable
skills in their fields of expertise over the years.
During the current reporting year, provision was
made to invest N$192.4 million in new capital
projects: N$121.7 million in mandatory projects
and N$70.7 million in potential projects. The
implementation of projects in the latter category
depends on the availability of cash flow.
The project portfolio currently consists of 61 pro
jects, several spanning a number of years. Eight
projects were completed during the reporting
year, including the 18th Road Primary Station
(Area 1), Flamingo Primary Station (Area 1), Wel
witschia Primary Station (Area 2) and Quality of
Supply Recording Equipment at various iden
tified sites in the region, among others.

KEY PROJECTS
Capacity-building is a high priority at Erongo
RED, whether it be infrastructure expansion
and updating, process implementation or the
upgrading of skills of the company’s employees.
To cite one example, the SCADA (Supervisory
Control and Data Acquisition) tool restores
the power supply when faults occur and also
maintains desired operating conditions. Imple
menting this system, Erongo RED has signi
ficantly improved the reliability of supply by
reducing the duration of power outages, coordi
nating operations and ensuring safe operations.
This system will be further developed and
implemented throughout the entire Erongo
Region.
At the moment, all regions of Namibia are
in a situation in which the demand for elec
tricity outstrips the supply, or where aging
infrastructure can no longer supply a region’s
requirements in a reliable manner.
Due to the volume of commercial and largescale industrial activity currently underway in
Erongo, the company had to invest in network
upgrades in Walvis Bay, Swakopmund, Arandis,
Karibib, Okombahe and Omaruru. Upgrades
were essential to secure the electricity supply
to the region, so important to Namibia’s
economic development.
The Walvis Bay Intake Substation Project
Construction of the Walvis Bay intake-substation
building (a ‘gateway’ for electricity supply to
the town of Walvis Bay) was initiated in 2013,

and state-of-the-art technology, according
tec
tion,
to IEC61850 standards, regarding pro
automation and information schemes, was
installed. Security of supply to the town of Walvis
Bay is of utmost importance to Erongo RED.
Similar projects are planned to be implemented
in other towns of the Erongo Region.
The Swakopmund Bulk Upgrade Project
This project was initiated to expand the town’s
capacity to deliver a reliable electricity supply.
Currently, Swakopmund can support a peak
demand of 30MVA. However, during high
sea
son, when approximately 50,000 people
descend on the town, demand exceeds supply.
Increased demand from industrial consumers,
par
ticularly Husab mine, whose pro
duction
is scheduled to begin at the end of 2017, has
also made this upgrade imperative. Budgeted
at N$193.75 million, the project is slated for
completion in December 2020. The first pay
ment instalment of N$74 million, for overhead
power lines, was made to NamPower.
The Arandis Solar Power Plant
In the year under review, commission of the N$80
million photovoltaic Arandis solar power plant
was also initiated. This injection of solar power
into the regional grid is projected to save Erongo
RED an estimated N$127 million over 25 years.
Other key projects include the following:
•
Commission of the Paratus Intake Sub
station in Walvis Bay. This facility complies
with the IEC 61850 standard, a particularly
notable milestone for Namibia.
•
Commission of the Welwitschia and 18th
Road Primary Station.
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Network Operations
& Maintenance
Doing what we do, better

The electricity supply-and-distribution industry operates in a high-risk
environment, which demands high standards in expertise and operating
systems. The business is high-risk from a cost perspective, as equipment
and infrastructure development require large capital investment.
Failure to meet delivery targets has significant
implications for economic development and
foreign investment. It is also high risk in the
context of regulation and safety because elec
tricity is a dangerous commodity. It is absolutely
imperative that the safety of all installations
is maintained in order to prevent catastrophic
occurrences.

MAKING TECHNOLOGY
WORK FOR CUSTOMERS
In order to accomplish what it was created to do
and to do it well, Erongo RED strives to utilise
the latest technologies. During the period under
review line-fault indicators were piloted on our
overhead lines. These will assist the electricians
in identifying overhead line fault quicker, hence
restoring supply to our customers faster.

For example, Erongo RED’s headquarters in
Walvis Bay underwent major renovation at an
expenditure of N$22.8 million, which included
replacement of the roof, creating a new entrance
and reception area, parking for employees and
general redesign of offices to create more space
for the staff members.
Equally important is the efficient performance of
the network, which is ensured through a process
of continuous monitoring.
During 2016/17, N$17.4 million was invested
in maintenance and upgrades of the network,
compared with an amount of N$15.3 million in
the previous reporting period. This investment

100% (overall standard)

To provide a systematic approach to infrastruc
ture maintenance, the High-mast Replacement
Programme was launched. To date, more than
ten masts have been replaced. In addition, a
significant number of transformer/low voltage
boards were upgraded, specifically in Walvis Bay.

90% (overall standard)

Maintaining and upgrading the Erongo RED
dis
tri
bution network is essential to a reliable
electricity supply. In addition to network main
tenance, the company’s properties must be
monitored and upgraded as they require.

Achieve
ment on the execution of the main
tenance plan overall went up from 59.7 percent
during the 2015/16 period to 73.7 percent for the
period under review. In addition, compared with
the National Quality of Service Standard, the
general supply restoration times have improved,
as indicated in the graph below.
In the reporting period, 47 percent of all outages
were restored in the shortest possible time (1 hour
4 minutes) compared with 41 percent during the
previous period. Only 2 percent of all outages were
restored outside the standard.

Outside overall standard

Also during the year, additional primary sub
stations were added to our SCADA system,
making the monitoring and operation of the net
work effective.

ENSURING NETWORKS ARE
RUNNING OPTIMALLY

includes the cost of materials, equipment and
service, but excludes the company’s internal
labour component.
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“A Computerised Maintenance Management system
which is envisaged to be part of the new ERP will
allow us to have a proactive approach to predicting
outages (during which maintenance can be carried
out), rather than limiting us to mere reaction to
unplanned outages. Preventative maintenance
strategy approach is enormously beneficial and
will minimise the disruption of power supply to our
customers.”
Claude Tjizo
Executive Manager: Network Operations and
Maintenance
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Supply Business
Ensuring our systems are efficient and robust
While it is essential
to have a wellmaintained and
adequate distribution
network to ensure
reliable supply
of electricity to
customers, it is
equally important to
ensure that the supply
is managed accurately
and effectively.
Accurate procedures
to meter, bill and
receive payment
for electricity
consumption lie at the
heart of Erongo RED’s
business.

BILLING CUSTOMERS FOR USAGE
Possibly obvious, though essential to the sustainability of any business,
is the execution of administrative interventions in a timeous and accurate
fashion, so that billing is accurately carried out, and subsequently the
inflow of revenue is properly monitored.

Approximately 236 calls are
received each working day, of
which 80 percent are resolved
before the call is terminated.

In the case of Erongo RED’s commercial activities, customers must be
metered accurately, bills must be issued and customer payments must be
monitored.

Six call-centre staff members

Currently, Erongo recovers 98 percent of the total amount billed. Critical to
achieving this rate of return is the effectiveness of the call centre, which
is operational during working hours on week days. Every call conducted
by the centre is monitored; the company is able to resolve queries quickly.

day to resolve customer queries.

The company also gauges levels of satisfaction among its customers, by a
calls audit, which is carried out every three months. The audit establishes
overall levels of satisfaction.

ON CALL FOR OUR CUSTOMERS
Erongo RED has worked hard to foster dialogue with its customers and
has created some very successful platforms to make this possible. In 2014
the first call centre was established to which customers could turn for
assistance; the initiative has been very well received. The importance of
making the company accessible to its customers, was emphasised.
Currently, the call centre is manned during normal office hours. However,
due to centre’s success and uptake by customers, the feasibility of
extending its operating hours is being investigated. The company is
currently negotiating and instituting a double-shift system. Our goal is to
man the call centre for 16 hours each day.
Having established dialogue with customers, Erongo RED has reached
further, harnessing the power of technology to encourage customers to
report faults and address issues they have with Erongo RED’s infrastructure.
The company plans to introduce a downloadable mobile app with which
customers can report faults or vandalism to kiosks and substations by
uploading photographs to the company.
GPS co-ordinates are generated automatically by the app which accompany
the message, directing the company to the appropriate location so that
necessary maintenance can be carried out quickly.
Erongo RED’s commitment to making systems and responses more nimble
is borne out by its investment in ‘smart’ technology wherever possible.
Recently available digital electricity meters demonstrate the principle
perfectly: meter readings and connections can now be done remotely, pro
viding the company a wealth of information relating to consumption which
is available, so to speak, at the company’s fingertips.

are available for 9 hours each

N$51,000 was invested to train
its staff to serve customer
interests better.
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FEEDING INTO THE GRID
Currently, 167 Erongo RED customers feed back into the grid from their own
solar-generated systems, the value of which was N$170,000 per month. The
kilowatt hours imported came to approximately 1,686,082 kWh, which is less
than one percent of the total units consumed during the year under review.
These customers are registered. In this way their consumption patterns can
be quantified and they can be reimbursed for their contribution.

2016/17

2015/16

NON-TECHNICAL LOSSES

2014/15

2013/14
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ERONGO RED CUSTOMER BASE, 2016/17

PUTTING CUSTOMERS FIRST
During the period under review, Erongo RED undertook several projects to
streamline metering. These included:
•

For the benefit of 314 bulk customers using three-phase connections,
Time-of-Use equipment was installed, enabling them to control and
pin-point exact times of usage.

•

Conversion or installation of automatic meter-reading equipment for
bulk customers and farmers who utilise three-phase connections
was carried out. A total of 88 installations were completed during
the reporting period. At the present time, 841 customers are on
automatic meter reading.

•

Erongo RED will soon be rolling out split meters. These meters will
offer real time reading and data.

“Happy customers are generally content to
pay their bills on time. Although a recovery
rate of 98 percent of what is billed is a good
record, we always need to keep improving.”
Nico Niemand
Executive Manager: Supply Business

‘Non-technical losses’ are losses that occur due to incorrect meter
readings, inaccurate customer details stored in the system, or illegal
tampering with meters, all of which make recovering outstanding monies
difficult. Mitigating these factors is an ongoing process, and revenue
protection measures have been put in place to ensure that such losses are
kept to a minimum.

To begin, a policy was formalised which made automated meters available
which can be read remotely. These automated meters, located on custo
mer premises, are supported by secondary meters in the substations.
This facility provides back-up information in case queries arise regarding
customer consumption patterns.
Pre-paid meters are checked and customer details are verified on an ongoing
basis, and a call to establish customer interest in prepayment (using a credit
meter) was issued among bulk customers. GPS technology will be employed
in townships, where erf numbers are not available. In this way, consumers in
these areas will be traceable and metered.
Balancing customer interests and convenience with running a company
on sound business principles that safeguard its interests, is not easy; by
employing ‘smart’ technology, Erongo RED has found a way to do both.
While the company places much focus on its customers’ interests, its
commitment to robust systems for streamlining its processes has meant
that revenue-protection measures are functioning well. The effectiveness

of these measures is attested by the fact that our average losses are down to
6.89 percent, which is within an acceptable, regulated standard of 12 percent.

MEASURES TO PREVENT TAMPERING
WITH PRE-PAID METERS
During the period under review, Erongo RED discovered that 24 customers
had been defrauding the company. They had employed the services of
an electrical technician who found a way for the electricity supply to
bypass their pre-paid meters. Readings taken by secondary meters in the
substations, enabled the company to prove the fraud and ultimately prevent
a loss in revenue. Charges were laid against the perpetrators and at the end
of the reporting period, the court cases were still in progress.
Technology employed by Erongo RED ensures that electricity supplied
through the grid is continuously measured at various points. This is carried
out to ensure that the amount of electricity fed into the grid is accounted
for and billed.
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Upon its inception in 2005, Erongo RED found itself in
a challenging position. At that time, Government had
introduced cost-reflective tariffs which differed vastly
from the heavily subsidised tariffs that had been the
norm to that point. This coincidence helped create a
perception that the establishment of Erongo RED was
the reason for the tariff increase.

2016/17 Review

Business
Strategy &
Performance
Management
System
Erongo RED reinvented

AN ETHOS OF EXCELLENCE
To address this situation, the company’s
Strategic Plan was drawn up and implemented.
It placed Erongo RED’s customers’ front-andcentre, establishing who they are, and what
they require from their distributor, and then
identified how the company should fulfil its
mandate and meet its goals.
The importance of a qualified and motivated
workforce cannot be over-emphasised. Thus,
employee training and skills-development mea
sures were put in place.
The Strategic Plan also formalised that
regardless of what technology would be used,
what people would be employed or how the
company’s finances would be managed, the
pursuit of excellence would be at the heart of
Erongo RED’s activities.
This meant that all business units needed to
commit themselves to achieving compliance,
and needed to have measurable standards in
place to be able to keep track of how closely
each business unit’s achievements matched its
goals.

These efforts have paid off. Our corporate culture
has accomplished a turn-around and embraced
cooperation as a mode of operation in order to
work towards a common goal. Erongo RED has
become an employer of choice and the calibre of
our workforce is impressive.
In terms of service delivery, the company has
also improved dramatically; now we receive
letters from customers bearing witness to their
satisfaction. However, Erongo RED will not rest
on its laurels. Working towards achieving excel
lence, to continue evolving as a company, is ongoing.

SETTING THE BAR
Erongo RED, focused on systems and
compliance as means to build a strong, sus
tainable company that meets its customers’
needs, has been approached by the Municipality
of Keetmanshoop to help setting tariffs and
putting a billing system in place. This is a
feather in the cap of Erongo RED and a project
in which we are proud to be involved.
The Keetmanshoop Municipality has been tasked
with taking over the electricity-supply function
in the Karas Region, in cooperation with the

“We are really proud of what we’ve achieved
to date as a company. We have turned
our corporate culture around so that now
we embrace cooperating in order to work
towards a common goal.”
Benny Nangolo
Senior Manager: Business Strategy &
Performance Management System

proposed electricity distributor for the south of
Namibia, SoRED, slated to be established and
operational by 2019. The details of an agreement
between Erongo RED and the Keetmanshoop
Municipality are currently being negotiated.

STRATEGIC AREA OF PRIORITY - PREMIUM 2016/2017
Objective

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Target

Ensure Financial Sustainability

% Increase in Real Growth

3%

Secure Funds

Nett Working Capital as (%) of Revenue

28%

Debt - Equity Ratio

50%

Enhance Customer/Stakeholder Relations

% Stakeholder Satisfaction

75%

Improve Quality of Supply Network and Service

% Compliance to Quality of Supply Standards (Nam QOSSS & NRS047) Various categories

90%

Develop and Implement

Peri-Urban: Number of New Services Connected to Residents (Connections installed by Erongo RED) per annum

150

Rural: Number of New Services Connected to Residents (Connections installed by Erongo RED) per annum

200

Progress against maintenance plan

85%

Electrification Master Plan
Maintenance and Operate Network Infrastructure
Transform Organisation Culture

% Achievement on Annual Culture Survey - Entropy Level

15%

% Staff Achieving Performance Targets

80%
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Public Relations
& Marketing
Entrenching our brand
Critical to the change in the dynamic relationship
between Erongo RED and its customers was the
transformation of the Public Relations section to
the Public Relations & Marketing section in 2013.

The Public Relations & Marketing section was initially
tasked with the respon
sibility for translating the
company’s values into a recognisable brand image,
in addition to setting up mechanisms by which the
company could reach out to communicate with custo
mers and shareholders and invite them to do the same.
In essence, the section needed to create new
relationships and nurture existing ones, as well as
support the company’s core business.
Subsequently, various educational campaigns
were developed and communicated, informing
consumers about the importance of electricity as a
commodity, the potential benefits to consumers of
Erongo RED’s pre-paid option and the new products
the company offers (such as the automated meters),
among other measures.
A sms platform was also launched, whereby members
of the public could be notified about planned power
outages.
During the period under review, meetings were
held with farmers in the more rural parts of the
region such as Omaruru, Uis, Karibib and Usakos,
to ascertain their needs. Meetings were also con
ducted with businesses to get their feedback about
how Erongo RED could further contribute to the
region’s development needs.

The high point on the calendar of stakeholder engage
ment initiatives are the Annual Public Meetings, at
which Erongo RED engages directly with the general
public.
Besides informing the public about matters such as
annual tariff increases, new products and planned
upgrades, we provide information on our corpo
rate social responsibility activities. These events
are also an opportunity for the public to voice their
needs and concerns, and to inform the company
where they feel there is room for improvement.
The suggestions and criticisms are submitted to the
Erongo RED executive team for consideration and
possible action.

HARNESSING SOCIAL MEDIA
Because social media have become ubiquitous and
easily accessible, the Public Relations & Marketing
section decided to use them as a means of commu
nicating to its advantage: a user-friendly, interactive
website was developed and Facebook and Twitter
profiles created.
The goal is to use these platforms, due to their
immediacy, to offer the public multiple channels to
engage with the company.

39

40

Annual Report 2016/17

Erongo RED - Power to the people

81%
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION
INDEX: THIS REFLECTS THE
PERCENTAGE OF CUSTOMERS
THAT INDICATED THEY ARE
SATISFIED WITH ERONGO
RED’S SERVICE DELIVERY.

31
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
MEETINGS HELD IN 2016/17
REPORTING YEAR.

5,218
CUSTOMERS WHO
REGISTERED FOR SMS
NOTIFICATIONS OF POWER
OUTAGES.
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SPONSORSHIPS TO
THE AMOUNT OF N$782,707

Some of the initiatives we have supported:

“The section has implemented a host of
stakeholder engagement initiatives, particularly
with the media, aimed at disseminating as
much information about Erongo RED and our
activities as possible.”
Benjamin Nangombe
Public Relations and Marketing Officer

CORPORATE IMAGE AND
BRANDING
Erongo RED’s revised corporate identity manual
was approved in 2016 and currently the Public
Rela
tions & Marketing section is busy with
various campaigns to project the company’s cor
porate image through different channels.
The Erongo RED head office in Walvis Bay has
undergone a total renovation, with bold and
prominent branding announcing the company’s
presence in the heart of Walvis Bay.

In keeping with Erongo RED’s focus on
compliance, the company is reviewing its Cor
porate Social Responsibility Policy, to ensure
that its interventions are appropriate.

EMPOWERING ERONGO’S
YOUTH
Erongo RED is determined to make a difference
in the lives of Namibian youth by awarding
bursaries to hardworking and dedicated stu
dents.

The message our corporate image communi
cates is clear: “We are Erongo RED, and we serve
the Erongo Region.”

Erongo RED also runs a bursary scheme, bene
fiting two to three students annually. Since 2012
the company has sponsored six full bursaries to
students from various regions studying finance,
electrical engineering and law.

Erongo RED believes it has a responsibility to
contribute socially to the community it serves.
Its efforts include sponsorships in the areas of
educa
tion, community development, environ
mental concern, health and social welfare.
Priority is given to endeavours launched in the
Erongo Region.

Community members received food parcels from Daniel Kuzatjike,
Chairperson of Erongo RED’s CSR Committee, at the Omatjete
Disability Day.

The Erongo Regional Soccer Team, who participated in the
Namibia Newspaper Cup, held in Swakopmund, proudly showcase
their tracksuits and soccer gear sponsored by Erongo RED.

Erongo RED sponsored the Ritja Career Fair, held in Omaruru, to
the amount of N$20,000.

Construction of the boundary wall of the Kamwandi Secondary
School in Henties Bay was sponsored by Erongo RED, creating a
safe environment for learners and teachers.

The road block safety initiative, organised by the Erongo Region Police,
was sponsored with reflector jackets and speed bumps used at the
Swakopmund and Walvis Bay road-blocks during December 2016.

During the year under review, 43 initiatives were
supported through sponsorships to the amount
of N$782,707. Most of these sponsorships were
in support of community development and edu
cation and training.

The corporate image is consistently displayed
by way of branded clothing worn by employees,
and the branded merchandise they use on a daily
basis.

SUPPORTING THE
COMMUNITIES IN WHICH
WE OPERATE

During the reporting year, Erongo RED became the main sponsor
of the Swakopmund International Trade Expo (SWAITEX).

In addition, Erongo RED has granted ten appren
ticeships to students from various vocational
training centres, offering them the opportunity
to gain practical skills through job attachment
programmes. The students are assigned to
Erongo RED’s qualified engineers and are
compen
sated during their attachment. The
aim of the job attachments is to create a pool
of competent employees by training candidates
well.

Community
Development
Community
Development
Environment
Community
DevelopmentEnvironment
Environment
Education
Events
and
Functions
Education
and and
Training
and
Education
andTraining
Training Events
Events
andFunctions
Functions
SportDevelopment
Development
SportSport
Development

Staff members of the Da Palm Secondary School, located in Otjim
bingwe, received tables and chairs, sponsored by Erongo RED.

Da Palm Secondary School in Otjimbingwe presented Fessor
Mbango, CEO of Erongo RED, with a token of appreciation for the
donated furniture.
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Human Capital
& Corporate
Services
Nurturing our biggest asset
Since its inception, Erongo RED has
strived to create a workforce that is
skilled, engaged, diligent, proactive and
professional. Erongo RED is committed to
developing its employees as individuals,
and to creating a working environment
that is both stimulating and fulfilling.

Striving to be an employer of choice, Erongo RED
provides rewarding, long-term employment environ
ment, benefits and perks. We believe, through the
creation of employment opportunities, we can make a
significant contribution to the Namibian society and
economy. For this reason, it is important to the company
that its workforce is engaged and therefore imple
ments initiatives that equally benefit the company, its
employees and the community.
In addition, we aim to ensure our operations, employees and
environment are safe while at work. This requires aggressive
engagement and awareness initiatives in which employees take
ownership of hazards and risks involved in our operations
associated with their jobs, and operate equipment properly
and safely.

“Current, global drivers of change impact in
complex ways, not only our business operations,
but also the environment, climate and social
conditions globally. Erongo RED must adapt
to these external changes in order to promote
the continual development of the electricity
industry. To keep pace with the industry’s
evolution, the Human Capital and Corporate
Service division remains proactive, developing
relevant strategies that will help Erongo RED’s
staff adapt and promote positive change in a
world of daunting complexity. With appropriate
responses to these challenges, the company
will not only sustain healthy profit margins,
but also fashion a promising future in public
and regulatory policy and for society at large.
This flexibility and motivation is the essence
of sustainability, the backbone of which, is the
employees of Erongo RED.”
Monia Tjongarero
Senior Manager: Human Capital &
Corporate Services
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The period under review has been one of intense
activity, specifically on the implementation
of an effective and responsive Human Capital
process. The core activities of Human Capital
& Corporate Services revolve around four major
areas:
•

Human Resources (relating to manage
ment of all employment matters)

•

Corporate Services (which engage all
support services such as information ser
vices, record keeping, archiving, among
others)

•

Safety, Health, Environmental and Well
ness (ensuring compliance in all these
areas), and

•

Property Management (which includes
the maintenance of buildings and sub
stations and security provision for our
assets, workforce and customers).

HUMAN RESOURCES
All aspects of talent management in the
company are carried out by this arm, ranging
from the sourcing of staff to the management
of all labour-related matters. It is evident that
companies currently face a radically shifting
circumstances in the workforce, the workplace,
and the world of work.
The Human Capital division is thus required
to focus on how to better organise, manage,
develop, and align our workforce to meet busi
ness objectives in an unpredictable global
environment.
Of particular importance during the year
under review was the ability of Erongo RED to
adapt, in order to remain relevant in terms of
its processes and policies. Therefore, the re
design and review of our policies was a focal
point for the division. It is on this basis that the
disciplinary and recruitment policies were re
viewed and implemented.
An equally-important focus on organisational
level was the review and consequently regrading
of job profiles from A to C5 Paterson job grades.
Although the review was a gruelling process, the
division engaged with individual employees to
validate the job profiles before the final grading
was done. The exercise resulted in a 30 percent
up-scaling of gradings, signalling the change in
our operational focus and growth.
The period under review also witnessed the
resig
nation of our former CEO, Mr Robert
Kahimise, and saw a smooth transition of the
new CEO. Mr Fessor Mbango, formerly the Exe
cutive Manager: Network Engineering, stepped
into the role initially in an acting capacity, and
subsequently has been appointed as CEO of
Erongo RED. We are confident that Mr Mbango
will bring a wealth of experience and innovation
in preparing Erongo RED for a sustainable
future.
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36%
Male

Male

N$3.5 million

Another achievement during the reporting year
was the adoption of the company’s Human
Capital Charter, in which the parameters of
the services provided by the division are
established. This has made benchmarking and
performance assessment easier to effect. The
redesign of workplace process and system will
remain a continuous and dynamic process.
The Human Capital division will continue to be
at the forefront of initiating and implementing
people-orientated objectives that will allow
Erongo RED to rise to future challenges, as the
rewards will have positive pay-offs in terms of
financial performance, productivity, employee
engagement, and many more benefits.

INCLUSION AND DIVERSITY
Erongo RED ascribes to a culture of inclusivity
which honours the diversity of its people, in its
performance and its sustainability.
These elements constitute cornerstones in
our human-capital foundation, accelerating
development and retaining employees. Our
workforce profile attests to the success of our
human-capital approach.
We also continue to promote the empowerment
of women in the workplace. Currently, 31
percent of our management team (this includes
middle management, senior management and
executive level) are females, while 36 percent
of our total workforce are females. The graphs
below summarise the affirmative action profile
of our workforce.

in workforce

LABOUR TURNOVER
We are proud of the fact that our labour
turnover remains low in comparison to industry
standards. Erongo RED continues to play a vital
role in benefit improvement and the develop
ment of our employees.
The following cases of labour turnover were
recorded in the reporting year:
•
Resignation: 10
•
Normal retirement: 1
•
Death: 0

LABOUR RELATIONS
Sound labour relations continued to be an
important area of focus for Erongo RED. About
67 percent of our employees are members of
the union. We strive to maintain harmonious
relations with our workforce and their repre
sen
tative union, the Mine Workers Union of
Namibia (MUN).
Company-Union meetings continue to serve
as a valuable platform for open discussion on
labour-related issues of interest. This platform
has raised important issues and items which
are currently under review, exploring alternative
solutions for mutual benefits. The two-year
wage agreement, signed during the previous
reporting period, is in force until 30 June 2017.
Erongo RED continues to enjoy a healthy
disciplinary record; three cases for corrective
actions and no dismissals were noted during
the reporting period.

The company also provides disciplinary training
interventions on a continual basis to create
awareness and provide direction concerning
the effective handling of disciplinary issues.

ORGANISATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
The development of staff remains one of
our key priorities, and we are committed to
con
tinual investment in the development of
our employees’ capabilities and in creating
platforms for growth.
Business performance is driven to higher levels
through capacity-development initiatives, which
drive performance excellence and form a basis
for employee retention and advancement within
the company.
During the reporting year, various initiatives
were implemented to promote raising stan
dards of empowerment and development in our
workforce.
A total of 24 staff members were registered for
the New Management Development Programme
(NMDP) and three for the Executive Develop
ment Programme (EDP), both at the University
of Stellenbosch Business School, South Africa.
A total amount of N$3,515,943 was invested
in training and organisational development
initiatives during the reporting year.

Fixed-term contracts & trainees
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CORPORATE SERVICES

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The provision of regular and accurate information by the company to its
stake
holders and customers is a regulatory requirement, and precise
archiving and record-keeping of all business-related information, including
internal notices, is crucial.

The management, maintenance and security of Erongo RED’s properties
and buildings are crucial to the sustainability of our business. The
building and security section must ensure an open, safe, professional,
efficiently run, maintained and physical (properties) environment that
contributes towards meeting the objectives of Erongo RED.

The vision of the records management unit is to devise an intelligent way
of organising and finding information that is valid and has integrity, whilst
providing confidentiality and availability in a standardised way across the
company. In essence, this means having information that is needed to
perform business functions, finding that information easily, and trusting
that it is accurate.
The company’s framework for comprehensive information governance,
the specification of decision rights and an accountability framework to
ensure appropriate behaviour in the valuation, creation, storage, use,
archiving and deletion of information is currently under review.
These include the processes, roles and policies, standards and metrics
that ensure the effective and efficient use of information, enabling
Erongo RED to achieve its goals in respect to information governance
and in compliance with the National Archive Act. For example, the Act
specifies the archiving of all notices to customers and the public. Before
archiving, however, all items to be filed need to be identified through the
allocation of a reference code.
Through concerted effort this requirement, including the drafting of a
record management policy, was a focal point under our Corporate Services
functionality during the reporting year.
The Human Capital division continues to embrace new ways of working
with documents and records so as to develop a culture of respect for
information and knowledge management. Erongo RED’s success is
dependent on information and the way we convert our information to
knowledge will define the competitiveness of our business in the future.

SAFETY, HEALTH, ENVIRONMENT AND
WELLNESS (SHEW)
Erongo RED believes that safety and efficient production go hand-inhand, hence we are committed to maintaining a SHEW management
system and acknowledge a moral, legal and financial responsibility for
the safeguarding and well-being of all persons who may in any way be
affected by the activities of Erongo RED.
Streamlining this section was a high priority during the year under review,
as was the appointment of a new SHEW Officer, Yvonne Nghilumbwa. We
continue to strategically mitigate the current labour-intensive processes
and under-staffing challenges the division faces.
The period under review focused on SHEW change management initia
tives across the company to ensure compliance and awareness. The
inception and appointment of the safety-related SHEW Committee was a
highlight for the division as well as data management of the SHEW related
matters.
The establishment of a SHEW Committee is a statutory requirement. The
committee is comprised of safety representatives from different business
units. The functions of the Committee are to record all SHEW incidents,
to carry out necessary inspections on compliance and identification of
hazards, to mitigate and recommend SHEW matters to the Management
team.
In addition, employees working in Area 3, which is the Omaruru/Karibib/
Uis/Usakos district, were given snake-handling familiarisation courses,
as the risk of encountering snakes in the course of their duties is high.

The section further ensures that Erongo RED facilities and properties
are accessible to authorised personnel and that they are in compliance
with all legislative, security requirements and regulations. In doing so,

it also seeks to set clear rules and regulations for the maintenance and
protection of our buildings and properties, as well as for security and
access.

smaller, independent security companies have been engaged in Area 3
(the rest of Erongo Region). Substations are also monitored by security
companies, to ensure safety of equipment, employees and the public.

In the year under review, a building maintenance schedule was drawn
up to address a maintenance backlog that had accumulated over the
past few years. This is crucial to the image of Erongo RED, in light of the
economic presence of Erongo RED in the Erongo Region.

A notable resolution that was drawn up during the year under review
was the transfer of legal ownership of certain properties (including
substations) in the Erongo RED portfolio — which came under company
management when electricity distribution was devolved from regional
councils. The transfer of all properties depends on practicalities and
cooperation from the shareholders involved and remains a key focal area
for building and security section.

With regard to security, G4S has been contracted to provide guarding and
security services in Areas 1 and 2, (Walvis Bay and Swakopmund), while
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Corporate
governance
Erongo RED has not yet adopted integrated
reporting, as recommended in the context
of NamCode. It does, however, endorse
and accept the implementation of the
principles of good corporate governance as
far as currently applicable to Erongo RED.
As such, the Board and its committees
strive to ensure the company acts as a
focal point for, and is the custodian of,
corporate governance by ensuring the
company functions as a responsible
corporate citizen.

Governance structure
Erongo RED’s governance structure is as follows:

Board of Directors

Audit and Risk

Remuneration and

Stakeholder Engagement

Management Committee

Nomination Committee

Committee

Executive Committee

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Shareholders Agreement makes provision for the appointment of
eight non-executive directors and an alternate director for each director.
In addition to these provisions, the Chief Executive Officer serves as the
ninth member of the Board, as a non-voting ex officio director.
The Shareholders Agreement does not stipulate the period of the directors
term of office. Notwithstanding, in accordance with good governance
principles, the Board Charter does make provision for a three-year term
of office. Directors are eligible for reappointment at the expiration of that
term, but a member may not hold office for more than two consecutive
terms.

DIRECTORS AS
AT 30 JUNE 2017

ROLE

Mr TN Nambala

Chairperson, non-executive director

Mr L //Garoeb

Vice-Chairperson, non-executive director

Mr R Kahimise

Chief Executive Officer, ex officio director
(resigned on 20 January 2017)

Mr F Mbango

Chief Executive Officer, ex officio director
(appointed 24 April 2017)

Mr M Skini

Non-executive director

Mr EM Wetha

Non-executive director

Mr FA Hartzenberg

Non-executive director

Ms HM Gebhardt

Non-executive director

Mr R Junias

Non-executive director

Ms YZN Nambahu

Non-executive director

Ms A Nkosi

Alternate to Mr R Junias, non-executive
director

Ms LN Joel

Alternate to Mr FA Hartzenberg, non-executive director

Ms NA Johannes

Alternate to Mr TN Nambala, non-executive
director

Mr F Risuro

Alternate to Mr L //Garoeb, non-executive
director

Mr J Haipinge

Alternate to Ms HM Gebhardt, non-executive
director

Mr RS Ochs

Alternate to Mr M Skini, non-executive
director

Ms R Hoabes

Alternate to Mr EM Wetha, non-executive
director
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COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEES
AS AT 30 JUNE 2017
All Board Committees have board-approved Terms of Reference. These
are annually reviewed and aligned with the NamCode, as it is applicable to
Erongo RED’s circumstances.
Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Audit and Risk Management Committee serves the Board by
monitoring an effective internal-control and risk-management system.
The committee operates within the framework of principles of good
corporate governance.
The committee is further mandated to assist the Board accomplish the
following:
•

Review the financial-reporting process, internal control and
functioning of the audit process.

•

Manage areas of risk relevant to the company’s operations.

•

Manage the monitoring of compliance with laws and regulations, of
articles of association and its own code of business conduct.

•

Evaluate management’s success in creating a ‘control culture’, which
management accomplishes by communicating the importance of
internal control and risk management and ensuring all employees
understand their roles and responsibilities.

•

Review philosophy, strategy and policies pertaining to risk that
management proposes. The committee ensures compliance with
these policies and the overall risk profile of the company.

•

Prepare a work plan on issues for deliberation by the committee
in the subsequent calendar year. The annual plan must ensure
coverage of matters outlined in its terms of reference.

In the performance of these duties, the committee maintains a close
working relationship with the Board of Directors, management and the
internal and external auditors.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

•

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee serves as an independent
body that recommends policies regarding the remuneration of directors,
executives and company staff. The committee plays a pivotal role in the
appointment of the Chief Executive Officer, Executive Managers and the
Company Secretary.

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS

The committee is further mandated to assist the Board accomplish the
following:
•

Determine whether the company’s remuneration policy motivates
employees with incentives and encouragement to perform to
the best of their ability and, in a fair and responsible manner, are
rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of the
company.

•

Recommend fees to be paid to each director. (Fees confirmed by the
Board are submitted at the Annual General Meeting for approval.)

•

Recommend and review Human Capital and Performance
Management System policies.

•

Oversee the development of an induction programme for new
directors.

•

Mentor inexperienced directors through a mentorship programme.

•

Prepare a work plan on issues for deliberation by the committee in
the subsequent calendar year.

Stakeholder Engagement Committee
The Stakeholder Engagement Committee’s primary role is to provide the
Board with policy-level advice regarding stakeholder issues that might
affect the company. The committee is further mandated to assist the
Board accomplish the following:
•

Develop a stakeholder engagement plan.

•

Create a framework to provide feedback to shareholders.

•

Create a platform for dialogue with stakeholders.

•

Engage with local, regional and central governments to deal with
stakeholder issues.

Composition of Board Committees as at 30 June 2017

Prepare a work plan on issues for deliberation by the committee
in the subsequent calendar year. The annual plan must ensure
coverage of matters outlined in these terms of reference.

A record of attendance at Board meetings is provided in the table on the
following page. Directors also attend Project Board Meetings, the meeting
is mandated to:
•

Approve the Capital Expenditure Budgets and Projects.

•

Receive and vet progress reports prepared for capital projects.

•

Award tenders whose value exceeds N$5 million in accordance with
in the Erongo RED Procurement Policy.

DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS
Ongoing development of directors occurs in three stages: induction,
mentorship, training.
The induction process familiarises new directors with the operations of
Erongo RED and the industry in which it operates. During the period under
review, no new directors were appointed. A Mentorship Programme for
newly appointed directors was developed and awaits Board approval.

“Erongo RED strives to be a responsible
corporate citizen. It endorses and implements,
as far as practically possible, the principles
of good corporate governance espoused in the
NamCode.’’

The Board had approved a Directors’ Development Programme for the year
under review. Training sessions were conducted in-house or by external
service providers. To improve Board effectiveness, areas for further
development were identified.

Thandi Paulette !Gaoses
Company Secretary/Legal Advisor

BOARD EVALUATION
Relying on its Remuneration and Nomination Committee, the Board
conducted a second Board evaluation during the period under review. This
evaluation took under its purview the Board, its committees, individual
directors, the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary. The
evaluation was presented to the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting.

Board of Directors’ Development Plan (BDP)

Audit and Risk Management

Remuneration and Nomination

Stakeholder Engagement

Committee

Committee

Committee

Board of Directors Development Plan (BDP)
NAME

Mr FA Hartzenberg

Mr L //Garoeb

Mr R Junias

(Chairperson)

(Chairperson)

(Chairperson)

TN Nambala

Corporate governance conference

Corporate governance
certificate programme

*

Strategic
business
management

Business risk
management

*

FA Hartzenberg
Mr R Junias

Ms YZN Nambahu

Ms HM Gebhardt

Mr EM Wetha

Mr L //Garoeb

Ms H Gebhardt

Mr EM Wetha

Understanding
tariffs (in house)

*

*

*

L //Garoeb

*

*

*

R Junias

*

*

*

EM Wetha

*

*

*

M Skini

*

*

*

*

*

HM Gebhardt
Mr M Skini

Project management framework (in
house)

YZN Nambahu
LN Joel (alt. director)
* Indicates the director has attended the course.

*

*

*
*

51

1/2

0/2

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

1/2

*

2/2

2/2

2/2

*

0/2

*

The effectiveness of the Board with regards to composition, diversity
of skills, conduct of meetings and administration, adequacy of
management information and the quality of decision making, among
others.

0/1

•

Board committee leadership, teamwork and management relations,
meetings, roles and responsibilities.

•

Assessment of individual member leadership, commitment, partici
pation, knowledge, skills, ethics and integrity.

2/4

*
1/1
2/4

*
*
*

*

*
*
*

*
*
*

*
*
*

*
*
*

*
*
*

*
0/1
*

Member
1/1
3/4

*
0/1
*

Member
1/1
4/4

Chairperson
0/1
*

Member
1/1
4/4

*
0/1
*

*
0/1

•

*

Directors do not vote on matters wherein their personal interests, or
perceived interests, are under deliberation and are excused from attending
any meeting in which agenda items that discuss such interests are tabled.

COMPANY SECRETARY

1/4
*
0/2

0/2

*
2/4
*
2/2

1/2

*
*
*
*
*

*
*
*

*

*
*
*
*

*

*
*
*
*

*

*
*
*
*

*

*
1/4
*
0/2

1/2

*
*
*
*

*

*
4/4
Member
2/2

2/2

Member
*
*
2/2

*

*
4/4
Member
2/2

2/2

Member
*
*
2/2

*

*
2/4
Member
2/2

2/2

Chairperson
*
2/2

*

Chairperson
0/2

*

*

*
2/2

Ms Thandi Paulette !Gaoses is the Company Secretary/Legal Advisor. She
plays a vital role in the governance of the company, providing support and
guidance in relevant matters.
She is suitably qualified and is afforded access to the company’s resources
in order to execute her duties effectively. She is not a member of the Board
of Directors and is required to maintain an arm’s length relationship with
the Board which ensures her independence. All directors have unrestricted
access to the Company Secretary.

1/4
Non-Executive
Director

Internal Audit assists the organisation to reach objectives by bringing a
systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effective
ness of the risk management, control and governance processes.

Executive Director
F Mbango (APPOINTED
24/04/2017)

* The individual is not a member of the board or committee.

1/4

Executive Director
R Kahimise (RESIGNED
20/01/2017)

1/4

2/4
Non-Executive
Director
1/4

Alternate Director
RS Ochs (Alternate to
M Skini)

3/4

*
Alternate Director

Alternate Director
R Hoebes (Alternate to
EM Wetha)

*

*

*
Alternate Director

Alternate Director
J Haipinge (Alternate to
HM Gebhardt)

*

*

*
Alternate Director

Alternate Director
F Risuro (Alternate
L //Garoeb)

*

*

*
Alternate Director

Alternate Director
NA Johannes (Alternate
to TN Nambala)

*

*

*
Alternate Director

Alternate Director
LN Joel (Alternate to
FA Hartzenberg)

*

*

1/4
Alternate Director

The internal audit function performs an independent appraisal activity with
the full cooperation of the Board and management. This function is fully
endorsed in the company’s Internal Audit Charter.

Alternate Director

1/4

1/4

*
Alternate Director

Ms Karin Andima serves Erongo RED in the capacity of Internal Auditor. In
the context of her function, she reports to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee; administratively she reports to the Chief Executive Officer.

A Nkosi (Alternate to
R Junias)

*

*

4/4
Alternate Director
YZN Nambahu

Director

4/4

4/4

4/4
Director
3/4
4/4
Director
HM Gebhardt

4/4
Director
4/4
4/4
Director
M Skini

4/4
Director
4/4
4/4
Director
EM Wetha

3/4
Director
4/4
3/4
Director
R Junias

4/4
Director
4/4
4/4
Director
L //Garoeb

3/4
Director
2/4
3/4
Director
FA Hartzenberg

4/4
Chairperson

Chairperson
4/4
4/4

Capacity

TN Nambala

Attendance
at Extraordinary
Meetings

Capacity

Directors and employees are required to avoid situations in which their
personal interests are, or may be perceived to be, in conflict with Erongo
RED’s interests. Directors and staff are required to disclose promptly any
case in which such a conflict might arise. The Company Secretary should
be advised in compliance with legislation and internal policies.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Attendance
at
Scheduled
Meetings
Director

3/4

*

Capacity

1/2

*

Attendance
at Scheduled
Meetings

*

Capacity

*

Capacity

Attendance
at
Scheduled
Meetings
Attendance
at Extraordinary
Meetings
Attendance
at
Scheduled
Meetings

Evaluation concentrated on the following:

Attendance
at Extraordinary
Meetings

Attendance
at Extraordinary
Meetings
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Attendance
at
Scheduled
Meetings

Stakeholder Engagement
Committee
Remuneration and Nomination
Committee.
Audit and Risk Management Committee
Project Board
Board
Meetings
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The Internal Audit activity governs itself by adhering to guidance from
The Institute of Internal Auditors’, which includes the Definition of Internal
Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the International Standards for the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing. The guidance is mandatory for
the practice of internal auditing and is crucial to evaluating the effectiveness
of the internal audit activity’s performance.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Comprehensive information and facilities are available to shareholders to
help them prepare for attendance at the Annual General Meeting. The AGM
for the year under review was held on 9 December 2016. The Chairman
of the Board, chairpersons of committees and the external auditor were
prepared to respond to potential questions that might have been posed by
shareholders at the meeting.

INDEPENDENCE OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

”Based on its activity, Internal Audit is
responsible for reporting significant risk
exposures and control issues identified to the
Board and to Executive Management, including
fraud risks, governance issues, and other
matters needed or requested by the Board.”
Karin Andima
Internal Auditor

The Annual Financial Statements for the financial year 2016/2017 were
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. Erongo RED affirms that the auditors
have observed the most stringent professional ethics and believes the
firm conducted its audit independently of influence from the company.
The Audit and Risk Management Committee has confirmed the indepen
dence of the external auditors for the reporting period.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The company directors monitor the preparation of and approve the Annual
Financial Statements to ensure they are a fair representation of Erongo
RED’s financial position at the end of a financial year. The independent
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, evaluate the Annual Financial State
ments and express their informed opinion on the accuracy and fairness
with which these statements report the company’s financial position.
The company bases its statements on relevant accounting policies,
applied consistently and supported by reasonable judgements and
estimates.

54

Annual Report 2016/17

Annual Financial

Statements 2016/17

Erongo RED - Power to the people

55

56

Annual Report 2016/17

Erongo RED - Annual Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION
Country of incorporation and domicile

Namibia

Nature of business and principal activities

Distribution and supply of electricity to commercial and residential
customers within the Erongo Region, and other related activities.

red

power to the people

Company registration number

2004/074

Directors

As per directors’ report

Registered office

91 Hage Geingob Street
Walvis Bay

Erongo Regional Electricity
Distributor Company
(Proprietary) Limited

Namibia
Postal address

P.O. Box 2925
Walvis Bay
Namibia

Bankers

First National Bank of Namibia Limited
Bank Windhoek Limited

(Registration number 2004/074)

Standard Bank of Namibia Limited
Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Registered Accountants and Auditors

Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Chartered Accountants (Namibia)
Secretary

TP !Gaoses

Tax reference number

3728814-01-1

Lawyers

Masiza Law Chambers

INDEX
The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the members:
INDEX
Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval

PAGE
58

Independent Auditor’s Report

59-61

Directors’ Report

62-63

Statement of Financial Position

64

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

65

Statement of Changes in Equity

66

Statement of Cash Flows

67

Accounting Policies

68 - 71

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

72 - 89

57

58

59

Annual Report 2016/17

Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
The directors are required in terms of the Namibian Companies Act, No 28 of 2004 to maintain adequate accounting
records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly
present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the year then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors
are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established
by the company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the
directors to meet these responsibilities, the directors set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of
error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly
defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level
of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest
ethical standards in ensuring the company’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is
above reproach. The focus of risk management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring
all known forms of risk across the company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours
to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors are satisfied that the company has or had access to adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the company’s annual financial
statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the company’s external auditors and their report
is presented on page 59-61.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 62 to 89, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the directors and were signed on their behalf by:

....................................................

............................................

TN Nambala		

M Skini

Chairperson

Director

Walvis Bay
22 November 2017
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Directors’ Report
1.

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

The company is primarily engaged in the distribution and supply of electricity to commercial and residential customers
and other related activities in the Erongo Region and operates principally in Namibia.

4.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:
Directors

Nationality

Appointment

TN Nambala

Namibian

08 November 2012

FA Hartzenberg

Namibian

15 October 2012

L //Garoeb

Namibian

01 April 2013

R Junias

Namibian

06 November 2012

EM Wetha

Namibian

12 June 2012

M Skini

Namibian

03 January 2013

HM Gebhardt

Namibian

02 February 2016

YZN Nambahu

Namibian

02 May 2016

A Nkosi (Alternate to R Junias)

Namibian

18 September 2014

LN Joel (Alternate to FA Hartzenberg)

Namibian

08 November 2012

Company revenue increased by 14% from N$ 986,559,802 in the prior year to N$ 1,123,264,647 in the current year.

NA Johannes (Alternate to TN Nambala)

Namibian

13 November 2013

Net cash available to the company remained stable, although significant changes within the different categories were
observed during the period under review. Further details are provided in the Statement of Cash Flows and the notes
thereto.

F Risuro (Alternate to L //Garoeb)

Namibian

17 November 2014

J Haipinge (Alternate to HM Gebhardt)

Namibian

16 November 2015

Background

RS Ochs (Alternate to M Skini)

Namibian

07 December 2015

The Erongo Regional Electricity Distributor Company (Pty) Ltd (Erongo RED) was established to distribute electricity
in the Erongo Region. The company was formed by merging a number of electricity suppliers and distributors
including the distribution and supply operations of the Arandis Town Council, Erongo Regional Council, Henties Bay
Municipality, Karibib Municipality, Municipality of Walvis Bay, Omaruru Municipality, Swakopmund Municipality,
Usakos Municipality and NamPower (distribution business) in the Erongo Region. All of these individual distributors
are the shareholders of Erongo RED.

5.

Within the context of the Government’s National Development Plan, the Ministry of Mines and Energy has formulated
a White Paper on Energy Policy in 1998 which, amongst others, provides for the rationalisation of the electricity
distribution industry through the formation of regional electricity distributors as a means of improving service
delivery and efficiency within the electricity sector.
The supply and distribution licenses have come into force on 1 August 2005 and shall continue in operation from
the date of its commencement for a period of 25 years, unless cancelled or transferred sooner under section 30 of
the Electricity Act. In terms of section 21(2) of the Electricity Act No 4 of 2007, these licenses may be renewed upon
expiration of the periods.
2.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Review of financial results and activities
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Namibian Companies Act, No 28 of 2004. The accounting policies have been applied consistently
compared to the prior year.
The company recorded an amount of N$ 21,874,866 total comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2017. This
represents a decrease of 52% from the total comprehensive income of the prior year (2016: N$ 45,115,941).

The drive to consolidate the Namibian electricity distribution industry is a Government initiative motivated by the
policy drivers embodied in the 1998 White Paper on energy policy. One key motivating factor behind this drive was the
deteriorating electricity distribution assets in the small towns and rural areas which did not get properly maintained
due to rising economic pressures on the local authorities. Along with this, revenue generation in most of the small
towns and rural areas was not managed on sound commercial principles.
Erongo RED operates in a regulated environment, which means that the Electricity Control Board (ECB) approves tariff
applications by licensees on an annual basis. The ECB is tasked with ensuring that none of the licensees in Namibia
make excessive profits (i.e. protecting the interests of the consumer), while also ensuring the long-term sustainability
of the entity providing the service.
3.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends has been declared and paid to shareholders during the financial year. (2016: N$ 9,690,715)

Resignation

19 September 2017

AUTHORISED AND ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

There were no changes in authorised and issued share capital of the company during the year under review.
6.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR END

No events occurred since year-end which have a significant effect on the financial statements.
7.

GOING CONCERN

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds
will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will
occur in the ordinary course of business.
8.

SECRETARY

The company secretary is Ms TP !Gaoses.
Postal address:

P.O. Box 2925, Walvis Bay, Namibia

Business address:

91 Hage Geingob Street, Walvis Bay, Namibia

9.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers were the appointed auditors in accordance with section 278 (2) of the Companies Act, during the current year.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2017
Note(s)

2017

2016

N$

N$

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Note(s)

2017

2016

N$

N$

Assets

Revenue

16

1 123 264 647

986 559 802

Non-Current Assets

Cost of sales

17

(957 844 316)

(812 651 361)

165 420 331

173 908 441

Property, plant and equipment

2

842 753 363

701 624 579

Intangible assets

3

110 679 375

-

953 432 738

701 624 579

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables

4

231 304 096

170 252 698

Prepayments

5

314 323 692

363 891 692

Cash and cash equivalents

6

111 407 751

104 380 194

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

7

6 851 961

98 100 374

Current tax receivable

8

17 153 712

17 531 712

681 041 212

753 778 670

1 634 473 950

1 455 403 249

Total Assets

Gross profit

Other income

16

1 239 707

830 918

Administrative expenses

18

(115 518 181)

(101 156 381)

Operating profit

18

51 141 857

73 582 978

Finance income

19

11 514 517

11 927 099

Finance costs

20

(29 244 605)

(23 423 928)

33 411 769

62 086 149

(11 536 903)

(16 354 009)

21 874 866

45 732 140

-

(616 197)

-

(616 197)

21 874 866

45 115 943

Profit before taxation

Taxation

21

Profit for the year

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital

9

Other comprehensive income:

12 500 000

12 500 000

Other reserves

473 044 927

452 323 552

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Retained earnings

107 563 698

106 410 207

Actuarial loss on remeasurement of severance pay provision

593 108 625

571 233 759

Other comprehensive income for the year net of taxation

Liabilities

Total comprehensive income for the year

Non-Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities

10

230 709 023

254 148 565

Finance lease liabilities

11

3 668 596

1 651 337

Deferred revenue

12

184 030 857

124 429 958

Deferred income tax liability

13

101 875 790

90 338 885

Post employment benefit obligation

14

7 376 000

6 500 000

527 660 266

477 068 745

Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities

10

21 573 986

16 254 258

Finance lease liabilities

11

1 620 884

1 455 822

Deferred revenue

12

6 863 100

4 364 549

Trade and other payables

15

483 647 089

385 026 116

513 705 059

407 100 745

Total Liabilities

1 041 365 325

884 169 490

Total Equity and Liabilities

1 634 473 950

1 455 403 249

14
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Share
capital

Development reserve

N$

Balance at 01 July
2015

N$

12 500 000 265 963 582

Statement of Cash Flows

Land
development
reserve

Nondistributable reserve

Total
reserves

N$

N$

N$

-

153 170 021

Retained
income

Total
equity

Note(s)

N$

419 133 603

104 174 928

N$

535 808 531

-

-

-

-

-

45 732 140

45 732 140

Other comprehensive
income

-

-

-

-

-

(616 197)

(616 197)

Transfer between
reserves

-

-

5 089 949

28 100 000

33 189 949

(33 189 949)

-

Total comprehensive
income for the year

-

-

5 089 949

28 100 000

33 189 949

11 925 994

Dividends

-

-

-

-

-

(9 690 715)

5 089 949

181 270 021

-

-

-

-

55 246 134

101 105 946

Interest income

19

11 514 517

11 927 099

Interest paid

20

(29 244 605)

(567 259)

Tax paid

25

-

(13 017 568)

37 516 046

99 448 218

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
2

(105 799 410)

(166 909 492)

Sale of property, plant and equipment

2

-

660 663

45 115 943

Movement of financial assets

7

91 248 420

(72 662 872)

(9 690 715)

Proceeds from land development

-

22 771 378

(14 550 990)

(216 140 323)

452 323 552

106 410 207

-

162 119 435

Repayment of other financial liabilities

(18 119 820)

(33 971 447)

Repayment of finance lease liabilities

(1 845 505)

-

571 233 759

-

21 874 866

21 874 866

-

-

-

-

-

21 874 866

21 874 866

Amortisation

-

-

-

(7 378 625)

(7 378 625)

7 378 625

-

Transfer between
reserves

-

-

28 100 000

28 100 000

(28 100 000)

-

5 089 949

201 991 396

473 044 927

107 563 698

593 108 625

Note(s)

12 500 000 265 963 582
9

N$

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Balance at 30 June
2017

N$

23

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from other financial liabilities

Profit for the year

2016

Cash generated from operations

Net cash to investing activities
12 500 000 265 963 582

2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year

Balance at 01 July
2016
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Repayment of borrowings

11

-

(2 194 908)

Proceeds from borrowings

11

4 027 826

802 803

Dividends paid

24

-

(9 690 715)

(15 937 499)

117 065 168

Total cash movement for the year

7 027 557

373 063

Cash at the beginning of the year

104 380 194

104 007 131

111 407 751

104 380 194

Net cash from financing activities

Total cash at end of the year

6
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Accounting Policies
1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Accounting Policies (continued)

1.2

Property, plant and equipment

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and the Namibian Companies
Act, No 28 of 2004. The annual financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for accounting for financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss, and incorporate the principal accounting
policies set out below. They are presented in Namibia Dollar.

The cost of an item property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset
when:

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous year.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

1.1

Costs includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of
property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add
to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and main
tenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in
the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available
information and the application of judgement is inherent in the formation
of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual financial statements.
(i) Sources of estimation uncertainty
The company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will by definition seldom equal the related
actual results. The following estimates and assumptions are made by the
company.
Asset lives and residual values
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over its useful live taking into
account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets
and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a
number of factors. In reassessing assets lives, factors such as technological
innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual
value assessments considered issues such as future market conditions, the
remaining useful life of the asset and projected disposal values.
Allowance for doubtful debts
The company assesses its trade receivables for impairment at each balance
sheet date. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded
in the profit or loss, the company makes certain judgements as to whether
there is observable data indicating an expected decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a financial asset.
Based on past experience, the company has little prospects of collecting
debts outstanding over 90 days that have had no payments recorded during
the financial year. An allowance is raised on the total outstanding balance
of such debtors.
Provision of severance pay
Severance pay has been provided for all employees. Actuarial valuations are
based on assumptions which include employee turnover, mortality rates,
the discount rate, the inflation rate and rates of increases in compensation
costs.
(ii) Judgements in applying the company’s accounting policies
No judgments in applying the company’s accounting policies that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year were made during the
year.

•
•

It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the company; and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.
Land and capital — work in progress is not depreciated. Property, plant and
equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected
useful livers to their estimated residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been
assessed as follows:
Item		
Average useful life
Buildings		 25-50 years
Plant and machinery		 5-20 years
Motor vehicles		 5-10 years
Office and computer equipment		 5-30 years
Distribution network assets		 5-50 years
Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used
for more than one period are included in the cost of property, plant and
equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only
be used in connection with an item of property, plant and equipment are
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at the end of each reporting period. If
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted
for as a change in accounting estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it
is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.
The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any and the carrying amount of the item. An asset’s carrying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than estimated recoverable amount.

1.3

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when:
•
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
•
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments
were obtained/incurred and takes place at initial recognition. Classification
is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss, which shall not be
classified out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
Initial recognition and measurement

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is
recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity
investments for which a fair value is not determinable, which are measured
at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development
phase of an internal project) is recognised when:

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the instrument.

•

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss.

•
•
•
•
•

It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be
available for use or sale
There is an intention to complete and use or sell it
There is an ability to use or sell it
It will generate probable future economic benefits
There are available technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the asset, and
The expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can
be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when,
based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is
not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a
straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets
are reviewed every period-end.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life
after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be
impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining
carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists
and items similar in substance are not recognised as intangible assets.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight
line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item			 Useful life
Right-of-use		 10 years
1.4

Financial instruments

Classification
The company classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the
following categories:
•
•
•
•
•

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - designated
Loans and receivables
Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - designated,
and
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value being included in profit or loss for the period.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method, less accumulated impairment losses.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value,
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value being included in
profit or loss for the period.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
De-recognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the company assesses all financial assets, other
than those at fair value through profit or loss, to determine whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has
been impaired.
For amounts due to the company, significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default of
payments are all considered indicators of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment is reversed
shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for
equity investments classified as available-for-sale.
Impairment losses are also not subsequently reversed for available-forsale equity investments which are held at cost because fair value was not
determinable.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

1.4 Financial instruments (continued)

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account,
the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating
expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against
the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against operating expenses.
Loans to shareholders, directors, managers and employees
These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
Prepayments
Prepayments comprise of payments made to the supplier for the bulk
upgrade of the network. The amounts carry no interest and are expected to
be realised within the next 12 months.
Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
Trade and other payables are classified at amortised cost.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.
Cash and cash equivalents are classified as loans and receivables.
1.5

Income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised
as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of current and prior
periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised
as an asset.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Income tax expenses
Current tax and deferred taxes are recognised in the same component
of total comprehensive income (i.e. continuing operations, discounted
operations, or other comprehensive income) or equity as the transaction or
other event that resulted in the tax expense.
1.6

Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.
Finance leases – lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement
of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum
lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.
The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to
each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate
on the remaining balance of the liability.
Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised
as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating
lease asset. This liability is not discounted.
1.7

Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
1.8

Development reserve

At inception, the company’s shareholders provided start-up cash,
infrastructure and other assets in return for a share of the N$ 12.5 million
issued share capital. The excess of the assets transferred over the share
capital provided created the development reserve.
1.9

Non-distributable reserve

The non-distributable reserve was created to set aside the amount included
in the revenue requirement submitted for tariff approval to the Electricity
Control Board, to raise funds for NamPower portion of bulk upgrades
initiated by the company. The amount approved annually as part of the tariff
application to the ECB for specific upgrades is transferred to the reserve.
Once a bulk upgrade has been completed and its associated right-of-use
period begins, the portion of the reserve which relates to that upgrade is
realized over the term that the intangible asset is amortised.

1.10 Land development reserve
In terms of the approved Electricity Infrastructure Development Policy, all
profits realised on sale of land developments are transferred to the land
development reserve for further infrastructure development in the region.

Other services billed to customers including, late payment fees,
reconnection fees, connection fees, meter testing, temporary connections,
cable connections and special readings is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period and
is recognised in other income.

1.11 Employee benefits

Interest income

Short-term employee benefits

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest
method, that is, the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset).

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months
after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave,
bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised
in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense
as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the
case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as
an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make such
payments as a result of past performance.
1.12 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
•
the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event
•
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
•
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected
to be required to settle the obligation.
In accordance with the Namibia Labour Act, 2007, severance benefits are
payable to an employee, if the employee is unfairly dismissed, dies while
employed or resigns/retires on reaching the age of 65 years. The obligation
for severance benefits to current employees is actuarially determined in
respect of all its employees and is provided for in full. The cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. The
movement for the year is recognised in profit or loss in the year in which
it occurs.
1.13 Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received,
excluding discounts, rebates and other sales taxes or duty. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Sales of goods
Sale of goods is recognised when the company has supplied the products
to the customer, the customer has accepted the product and collectability
of the related receivable is reasonably assured. Sale of goods is included in
other income.
Service revenue
Electricity revenue is recognised when electricity is consumed by the
customer.

Grant funded assets
Grant funded assets income relates to the fair value of the assets
transferred to the company by the developers, net of value added tax and
other rebates. Such income is recognised over the useful lives of assets,
which is estimated at 30 years, once the risk and rewards of ownership of
the individual components installed passes to the company.
1.14 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.
1.15 Dividend distribution
Dividend distributions to the company’s shareholders are recognised in the
annual financial statements in the period which the dividends are approved
by the directors of the company.
1.16 Government grants (deferred revenue)
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance
that:
•
•

the company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary
to match them with the related costs that they are intended to compensate.
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised as income in
the period in which it becomes receivable.
Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at
fair value, are presented in the statement of financial position by setting up
the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at the
carrying amount of the asset.
Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the profit or loss.
Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first against any unamortised deferred credit set up in respect of the grant. To the extent that
the repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or where no deferred credit
exists, the repayment is recognised immediately as an expense.
Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the
carrying amount of the asset or reducing the deferred income balance by
the amount repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation that would
have been recognised to date as an expense in the absence of the grant is
recognised immediately as an expense.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)
2. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Pledged as security

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2017

The company’s obligations under the finance leases are secured over certain motor vehicles and equipment with a net book value of
N$ 33,696,364 (2016 : N$ 31,187,947).

2016

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

N$

N$

N$

N$

N$

N$

Land

11 835 000

-

11 835 000

11 835 000

-

11 835 000

Buildings

92 507 880

(6 583 868)

85 924 012

79 508 460

(5 061 394)

74 447 066

Plant and machinery

14 574 606

(7 047 853)

7 526 753

13 202 193

(6 259 818)

6 942 375

Motor vehicles

18 673 412

(7 313 970)

11 359 442

15 127 991

(5 895 235)

9 232 756

Office and computer equipment

39 617 161

(24 806 991)

14 810 170

36 349 735

(21 336 918)

15 012 817

Capital - Work in progress

79 410 026

-

79 410 026

49 409 644

-

49 409 644

Distribution network

1 052 541 443

(420 653 483)

631 887 960

928 964 546

(394 219 625)

534 744 921

Total

1 309 159 528 (466 406 165) 842 753 363 1 134 397 569 (432 772 990) 701 624 579

Included in Land and Buildings above is Portion 205 Rem of Erf 23B Walvis Bay Industrial Property, which serves as security for
overdraft facilities as disclosed in note 6. Erf 657 Walvis Bay serves as security for the loan from the Development Bank of Namibia
as disclosed in note 10. A negative pledge over all assets has also been registered as security to the Development Bank of Namibia.
The Development Bank of Namibia’s interest has been noted on assets financed under the loan agreement.
A register containing the information required by paragraph 22(3) of schedule 4 of the Companies Act is available for inspection at
the registered office of the company.
Included in Land and Buildings are substations of which the deed registration on the name of the company has not been completed.
The inclusion of these assets are based on the principle of reporting the transactions based on substance and not legal form only.
3.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2017

Intangible assets

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017
Opening
balance

Additions

Transfers

Depreciation

Total

N$

N$

N$

N$

N$

11 835 000

-

-

-

11 835 000

Intangible assets

Buildings

74 767 675

12 678 813

-

(1 522 476)

85 924 012

Other information

Plant and machinery

6 942 375

1 372 412

-

(788 034)

7 526 753

Motor vehicles

9 232 756

3 545 422

-

(1 418 736)

11 359 442

15 012 817

3 267 425

-

(3 470 072)

14 810 170

534 424 312

40 111 367

83 786 139

(26 433 858)

631 887 960

49 409 644

113 786 521

(83 786 139)

-

79 410 026

701 624 579

174 761 960

-

Office equipment
Capital - Work in progress

(33 633 176) 842 753 363

2016

Cost

Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying
value

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

N$

N$

N$

N$

N$

N$

118 058 000

(7 378 625)

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017

Land

Distribution network

110 679 375

-

Additions

Transfers

Depreciation

Total

N$

N$

N$

N$

N$

Land

11 835 000

-

-

-

11 835 000

Buildings

65 884 027

10 237 749

-

(1 354 101)

74 767 675

Plant and machinery

5 700 379

1 829 800

-

(587 804)

6 942 375

Motor vehicles

9 640 117

711 894

-

(1 119 255)

9 232 756

Office equipment

9 750 834

9 066 690

-

(3 804 707)

15 012 817

366 707 471

188 969 497

(52 882)

(21 199 774)

534 424 312

49 356 762

-

52 882

-

49 409 644

518 874 590

210 815 630

-

Capital - Work in progress

(28 065 641) 701 624 579

-

Additions

Amortisation

Total

N$

N$

N$

N$

-

118 058 000

(7 378 625)

110 679 375

The intangible asset relates to a right-of-use obtained for 10 years from NamPower in terms of
Walvis Bay Bulk Upgrade completed during the year.
Amortisation is included in cost of sales in the statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income.
4.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017

2016

N$

N$

Trade receivables

180 199 765

145 754 735

Provision for doubtful debts

(18 726 860)

(13 405 543)

69 831 191

37 903 506

231 304 096

170 252 698

7 012 476

4 822 564

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016
Opening
balance

-

Opening
balance

VAT

Distribution network
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Trade and other receivables pledged as security
Trade receivables were pledged as security for banking facilities of N$ 55,732,108 (2016 :
N$56,061,049) of the company.
Fair value of trade and other receivables
The company charges interest of the prime lending rate plus 2% on over due accounts. The
carrying amounts of trade receivables approximates their fair value due to this interest charge.
Refer to note 31 for the fair value information disclosure.
Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade receivables which are more than 30 days due are considered to be past due. At 30 June
2017, N$ 27,697,387 (2016 : N$ 15,270,236) were past due but not impaired.
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
Between 30 and 60 days
Between 60 and 90 days
More than 90 days

3 707 177

5 265 047

16 977 734

5 182 625

27 697 387

15 270 236
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)

4. Trade and other receivables (continued)

2017

2016

N$

N$

Trade and other receivables impaired

7.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, N$ 64,664 (2016: N$ Nil) of the trade receivables previously
impaired were recovered from trade debtors already provided for.

At fair value through profit or loss - designated

As at 30 June 2017, trade receivables of N$ 18,726 860 (2016: N$ 13,405,543) were past due
and provided for.

Current assets

FNB Namibian Unit Trusts Money Market Fund
Designated as at fair value through profit or loss (fair value through income)

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Opening balance
Net provision raised during the year
Bad debts written off during the year
Provision reversed during the year

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

13 405 543

22 070 155

5 321 317

4 935 388

(1 366 366)

(1 375 824)

1 366 366

(12 224 176)

18 726 860

13 405 543

In determining the recoverability of trade receivable, the Company considers any change in the
credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting
date.

2017

2016

N$

N$

6 851 961

98 100 374

6 851 961

98 100 374

17 153 712

4 136 144

Fair value information
Fair values are determined annually at statement of financial position date. Refer to note 31 for
the fair value information disclosure.

8.

CURRENT TAX RECEIVABLE

The current tax balance is made up as follows:
Opening balance
Provisional tax payments

The impairment recognised represents the total balance outstanding for all trade receivables of
more than 90 days.

-

13 017 568

17 153 712

17 153 712

Balance of taxation receivable consists of:
5.

PREPAYMENTS

Prepayments are made to Namibia Power Corporation Limited in respect of bulk upgrades. The
upgrades are completed by Namibia Power Corporation Limited on a cost-to-project basis,
whereby the amount pre-paid towards the project will be set-off against the final cost of the
upgrade.
Namibia Power Corporation Limited - Swakopmund, Sekel Duin & Lithops
Namibia Power Corporation Limited - Walvis Bay
Namibia Power Corporation Limited - Other

6.

282 786 225

218 661 225

-

118 058 000

31 537 467

27 172 467

314 323 692

363 891 692

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
6 400

6 400

Bank balances

110 756 990

103 666 715

Cash in transit

644 361

707 079

111 407 751

104 308 194

Interest at the prime overdraft rate less 2% is charged on the company banking facility and
interest of 4.25% - 5.8% is received on positive bank balances
The company has access to an overdraft facility of N$ 55,000,000, an autocard facility of N$
200,000 and a long term facility of N$ 532,108, totaling to N$ 55,732,108. The date of review of
the facilities was 30 June 2017. At year-end the company has not utilised the overdraft facility.
The overdraft facility is secured together with the finance lease over the building in note 10.
The bank overdraft facility is secured as follows
•

1st Bond N$1,9 million over Portion 205 Rem of Erf 23B Walvis Bay Industrial Property

•

Cession of book debts

Guarantees provided by First National Bank to Namibia Power Corporation Limited amounted to
N$ 11,000,000 at year end, which are in effect until cancelled.
The company has pledged the call account included in the bank balance above as security for
the Development Bank of Namibia loan as disclosed in note 10.

4 136 144

4 136 144

2016

13 017 568

13 017 568

17 153 712

17 153 712

30 000 000

30 000 000

12 500 000

12 500 000

222 283 005

240 402 823

9.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
30,000,000 Ordinary shares of N$ 1 each
Issued
12,500,000 Ordinary shares of N$ 1 each

10. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand

2015

Held at amortised cost
Development Bank of Namibia
The loan carries interest at a variable rate linked to the prime lending rate plus 1% per annum and
is repayable over a period of 10 years, including a 12 month grace period on the payment of the
capital balance. Monthly instalments amount to N$ 3,790,919. Repayment commenced on 01
September 2015 with a final instalment payable on 01 November 2024.
The loan is secured by:
Negative pledge over assets (note 2)
•
Cession of Escrow Account accruing to a balance of N$ 50 million over a period of 5 years;
•
(note 6)
•
First continuing covering mortgage bond of N$ 50 million of Erf 657 Walvis Bay;(note 2)
•
Cession of Fire Cover Policy over Erf 657 Walvis Bay; and
•
DBN’s interest to be noted on assets financed under the Suspensive Sale Agreement
Facility.
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10. Other financial liabilities (continued)

National Energy Fund

2017

2016

N$

N$

30 000 000

30 000 000

Grant received from Ministry of Mines and Energy

The loan carries interest at a fixed rate of 2.5% per annum and is repayable over a period of
10 years, including a 24 month grace period on the payment of the capital balance. Monthly
instalments amount to N$ 62,500 for 24 months and N$ 345,115 for the remaining period.
Repayment of interest commenced on 31 March 2016, and capital repayments will commence on
31 March 2018, with a final instalment payable on 28 February 2026.

Donated assets received from customers
Land development

The fair value of the loan at market related interest rates is considered to be N$ 21,114,311. Refer
to note 31 for the fair value information disclosure.
270 402 823

Non-current liabilities
230 709 019

254 148 565

21 573 986

16 254 258

252 283 005

270 402 823

Opening balance

N$

N$

36 268 778

37 564 091

133 371 892

69 218 084

21 253 287

22 012 332

190 893 957

128 794 507

128 794 507

64 258 957

Grants received during the year

68 962 549

69 099 898

Recognised in statement of comprehensive income

(6 863 099)

(4 564 348)

190 893 957

128 794 507

184 030 857

124 429 958

Current liabilities
At amortised cost

2016

Reconciliation of deferred revenue at year end:
252 283 005

At amortised cost

12. DEFERRED REVENUE

2017

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with
the related costs that they are intended to compensate. Grants received are realised to profit and
loss over a period of 30 years, which is the deemed useful lives of the assets acquired with the
grants.

- within one year

1 875 157

2 007 618

Donated assets are recognised in respect of grant funded assets received for infrastructure
erected by developers in order to receive supply of electricity. Grant funded assets received
are realised to profit and loss over a period of 30 years, which is the deemed useful lives of the
assets.

- in second to fifth year inclusive

4 339 105

1 450 017

Non-current liabilities

6 214 262

3 457 635

Current liabilities

11. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES
Minimum lease payments due

less: future finance charges

(924 782)

(350 476)

Present value of minimum lease payments

5 289 480

3 107 159

6 863 100

4 364 549

190 893 957

128 794 507

(135 976 242)

(113 990 595)

2 360 320

2 080 000

(13 325 373)

(12 212 731)

13. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY

Present value of minimum lease payments due

Deferred tax liability

- within one year

1 620 884

1 455 822

- in second to fifth year inclusive

3 668 596

1 651 337

5 289 480

3 107 159

Customer deposits

89 820 760

83 439 933

Non-current liabilities

3 668 596

1 651 337

Supplier deposits

(87 614 010)

(58 222 671)

Current liabilities

1 620 884

1 455 822

Provisions

4 494 446

3 217 330

5 289 480

3 107 159

Tax loss carried forward

Accelerated capital allowances for income tax purposes
Post employment benefit obligation
Consumables

The company has entered into finance leases for certain motor vehicles, equipment and stores.

Total deferred tax liability

Interest rates are linked to prime less 1% - 2% at the contract date. All leases have fixed
repayments and with an effective interest rate of between 9.75% and 11.75% (2016: 8.75% 9.75%).

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset / (liability)

The company’s obligations under finance leases are secured over certain motor vehicles and
equipment with a net book value of N$ 33,696,394 (2016: N$ 31,187,947).

At beginning of year
Reduction due to rate change

The finance lease over the building is secured together with the overdraft facility as disclosed in
note 6.

Current year temporary differences

38 364 311

5 349 849

(101 875 788)

(90 338 885)

(90 338 885)

(74 274 851)

-

2 250 754

(11 536 903)

(18 314 788)

(101 875 788)

(90 338 885)
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14. Post employment benefit obligation (continued)

14. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

2017

2016

N$

N$

Reconciliation of provision for severance pay
Opening Balance
Current service cost
Benefit payments
Interest charge
Actuarial losses
An actuarial loss of N$ Nil (2016: N$906,172) was recorded for the year.
The expected past service liability as at 30 June 2017 amounts to N$ 7,376,000. The number of
expected employees remained relatively stable and the increase in severance pay benefit does
not differ significantly from the assumed 7.9% over the year to 30 June 2017.
Provision for severance pay
In accordance with section 35(1) of the Namibia Labour Act, 2007, severance benefits are
payable to an employee, if the employee is unfairly dismissed, dies while employed or resigns/
retires on reaching the age of 65 years. The statutory termination benefits provided are
classified as defined benefits and are determined based on one weeks’ salary/wages for each
completed year of service.
Valuation method and assumptions
The actuarial valuation method used to value the liabilities is the projected unit credit method
prescribed by IAS 19 Employee Benefits. Future benefits valued are projected using specific
actuarial assumptions and the liability for in service members is accrued over the expected
working lifetime.
The most significant assumptions used are a discount rate of 9.2% (2016: 9.2%), an inflation rate
of 7.9% (2016: 7.9%) and a salary increase rate of 7.9% (2016: 7.9%). The actuarial assumptions
for retirement rates, promotional salary scale and withdrawal rates are based on actual data
gathered from larger retirement funds, and the average salary weighted duration of the liability is
calculated to be approximately 10 years. The membership profile has not changed significantly
since 2016.
Risks
Risks related to severance pay liabilities include:
•
Inflation risk;
•
Liquidity risk;
•
Salary inflation risk;
•
Risks from adverse discount rate movements;
•
Future changes in the fiscal policy/tax environment; and
•
Risks relating to future changes in the regulation benefits.
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity is based on the liability as at 30 June 2016 and it sets out the valuation result
to a 1% per annum increase and decrease in the salary increase assumption (i.e. either 8.9%
per annum or 6.9% per annum). Should the salary inflation rate increase to 8.9%, the expected
liability would amount to N$ 7,112,000. A decrease in the salary inflation rate to 6.9% would
decrease the liability to N$ 5,971,000. All other assumptions are held constant when the
sensitivity to the salary increase assumption is determined.
Key assumptions:
•

A discount rate of 9.2% per annum (2016: 9.2%)

•

A salary inflation rate of 7.9% per annum (2016: 7.9%)

•

Mortality is taken in line with the SA56-62 mortality table
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6 500 000

4 910 320

580 000

499 000

(314 000)

(310 492)

610 000

495 000

-

906 172

7 376 000

6 500 000

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2017

2016

N$

N$

Trade payables

349 414 773

245 739 881

Payroll accruals

25 685 538

18 947 800

Deposits received from customers

36 928 938

33 142 403

Uncashed payments

71 617 840

87 196 032

483 647 089

385 026 116

22 214 378

11 161 806

1 088 871 610

966 880 767

Fair value of trade and other payables
At 30 June 2017, the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair values
due to the short-term maturities of these liabilities. Refer to note 31 for the fair value information
disclosure.
The carrying amounts to trade and other payables are denominated in Namibia Dollar.
16. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
Revenue
Network contributions and cost-estimates
Electricity sales
Other regulated charges

5 315 559

3 952 883

Amortisation of deferred revenue

6 863 100

4 564 346

1 123 264 647

986 559 802

Insurance and scrapping proceeds

972 605

660 432

Other income

267 102

170 486

1 239 707

830 918

735 184 938

626 374 321

LA surcharges

55 684 141

49 177 828

Network and metering expenses

24 339 849

18 960 426

Salaries and wages

91 366 657

81 004 109

4 393 694

4 254 340

33 633 176

28 065 640

Other income

The revenue generated during the year under review was charged in line with the approved rates
of the Electricity Control Board of Namibia.

17. COST OF SALES
Electricity purchases

Buildings and security
Depreciation
Amortisation

7 378 625

-

Pre-paid sales commission

5 863 236

4 814 697

957 844 316

812 651 361

The purchase of electricity included under cost of sales were procured from Namibia Power
Corporation Limited and in-feed customers in line with the approved rates of the Electricity
Control Board of Namibia.
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18. OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

2017

2016

N$

N$

19. FINANCE INCOME

Operating lease charges
Contractual amounts

5 702 847

5 498 072

66 529 329

60 772 034

- Service cost

580 000

499 000

- Net interest on net defined benefit liability

610 000

495 000

312

289

Employee costs

Interest earned on outstanding customer accounts
Interest earned on positive bank balances

Bank overdraft

40 937

19 144

Trade and other payables

24 176

53 113

28 065 641

Amortisation - included in cost of sales

7 378 625

-

916 832 515

784 585 720

-

906 172

Advertising

971 005

1 084 965

Auditors remuneration

661 925

534 882

Bad debts written off

1 366 336

14 975 824

Movement on provision for bad debts

5 321 317

(8 664 612)

610 000

495 000

28 569 492

22 856 671

29 244 605

23 423 928

11 536 903

16 354 009

Accounting profit

33 411 769

62 086 149

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 32% (2016: 32%)

10 691 766

19 867 568

227 967

197 787

21. TAXATION
Major components of the tax expense
Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences

Bank charges

1 709 872

2 118 445

Consultancy

2 784 447

1 749 989

Directors’ remuneration

2 333 350

2 187 520

IT expenses

2 518 385

1 978 609

IT software licences

3 450 218

666 564

Marketing expenditure

1 793 473

1 737 765

Meetings and corporate events

1 502 776

1 520 098

Printing and stationery

2 194 506

2 100 510

Protective clothing

1 075 181

950 447

66 529 330

58 255 250

937 264

814 371

Subsistence and travelling - local

2 716 891

2 153 573

Telephone and communication

2 151 230

1 089 049

Training

2 604 556

3 073 989

Vehicle lease

2 650 045

2 838 197

VET levy

1 604 917

1 490 138

22. AUDITORS REMUNERATION

Other expenses

8 641 154

8 500 806

Fees

115 518 178

102 062 551

Secretarial services

1 073 362 497

913 807 742

Other services

Total cost of sales and administrative expenses

2 164 785

20. FINANCE COSTS

33 633 176

Total administrative expenses

1 889 290

9 762 314

Depreciation - included in cost of sales

Subsistence and travelling - foreign

N$

11 927 099

Interest-bearing borrowings

Remuneration

N$

9 625 227

Post employment benefit — interest charge

Cost of sales

2016

11 514 517

Expenses by nature

Actuarial gains / losses

2017

Interest revenue

Amounts expensed in respect of past service liability:

Number of employees
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Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Non-deductible expenditure
Amortisation of deferred income

(2 196 192)

(1 460 591)

-

(2 250 755)

Depreciation of grant-funded assets

1 538 797

-

Adjustment of prior year accelerated capital allowances

1 274 565

-

11 536 903

16 354 009

661 925

465 482

Rate change adjustment

No provision has been made for 2017 current tax as the company has no taxable income. The
estimated tax loss available for set off against future taxable income is N$ 33,268,242 (2016: N$
16,718,275).

9 550

12 700

-

52 100

671 475

530 282
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23. CASH (USED IN) GENERATION FROM OPERATIONS

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)

2017

2016

N$

N$

27. RELATED PARTIES

33 411 769

62 086 149

The municipalities and councils below are all shareholders of the company.

33 633 176

28 065 641

The related party transactions were carried out at terms and conditions agreed upon between
the parties.

-

(660 663)

(11 514 517)

(11 927 099)

29 244 605

23 423 928

-

(906 172)

876 000

1 589 680

Amortisation of deferred revenue

(6 863 100)

-

Amortisation of intangible asset

7 378 625

-

(61 051 399)

31 610 596

Prepayments

(4 365 000)

(86 826 256)

Trade and other payables

34 495 975

56 792 108

55 246 134

101 105 946

-

(9 690 715)

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Profit on sale of plant and equipment
Interest received
Interest paid
Actuarial gain on remeasurement of severance pay provision
Movements in provisions

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables

24. DIVIDENDS PAID
Dividends
No dividends of cents per share were declared and paid by the Company during the year under
review (2016: 78 cents)

Balance at end of the year

Arandis Town Council
Erongo Regional Council
Municipality of Henties Bay
Municipality of Karibib
Municipality of Omaruru
Municipality of Swakopmund
Uis Village Council
Municipality of Usakos
Municipality of Walvis Bay

98 169

-

187 467

4 113 743

4 133 369

77 061

29 487

111 375

205 992

2 470 469

1 073 344

16 841

3 359

143 987

84 448

1 230 884

586 958
-

197 144

197 144

73 199

75 123

Municipality of Karibib
Municipality of Omaruru

Namibia Power Corporation Limited

(17 153 712)

-

(13 017 568)

Namibia Power Corporation Limited

90 504

97 655

1 340 446

1 205 434

55 180

1 263

2 972 083

2 340 338

88 846 221

75 131 559

68 490 000

86 826 257

840 864 788

625 191 894

826 413

921 066

2 365 724

2 365 724

Related party transactions
Purchases from related parties
Namibia Power Corporation Limited

Board-approved capital commitments for bulk upgrade applications to NamPower amounted to
N$ 561,941,475 at year-end (2016: N$ 363,891,692), of which N$ 432,831,692 had been paid or
accrued for at 30 June 2017.

Local authority surcharges paid to related parties
Arandis Town Council

Although completed, Erongo RED has not yet received the final project cost for the Walvis Bay
upgrade, and therefore this amount is included in the amounts disclosed in this note.

Municipality of Henties Bay

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

Municipality of Omaruru

Minimum lease payments due

Municipality of Swakopmund

Municipality of Karibib

- within one year

13 054 899

1 846 857

Uis Village Council

- in second to fifth year inclusive

56 560 017

1 450 811

Municipality of Usakos

534 870 903

-

604 485 819

3 297 668

1 715 962

3 297 668

602 769 857

-

604 485 819

3 297 668

Operating lease commitments
- Arandis Solar Plant - minimum purchases

555 827

324 931

(17 153 712)

Authorised capital expenditure

- Buildings

N$

Municipality of Henties Bay

Prepayments made to related parties

26. COMMITMENTS

- later than five years

N$

Erongo Regional Council

Municipality of Walvis Bay
4 136 144

2016

Amounts included in trade payable regarding related parties

Municipality of Usakos
17 153 712

2017

Amounts included in trade receivables regarding related parties

Municipality of Swakopmund

25. TAX PAID
Balance at beginning of the year
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Municipality of Walvis Bay

874 415

888 139

1 089 882

1 071 524

15 771 531

14 555 638

206 128

222 388

1 250 700

1 249 299

33 299 346

27 904 050
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27. Related parties (continued)

Revenue and other income from related parties
Arandis Town Council

2017

2016

N$

N$

483 460

Erongo Regional Council
Municipality of Henties Bay
Municipality of Karibib
Municipality of Omaruru

557 121

188 826

659 092

1 106 138

3 761 737

172 707

165 205

874 222

1 379 438

12 648 384

10 840 438

Uis Village Council

119 134

63 349

Municipality of Usakos

538 823

469 298

10 720 757

10 573 359

Municipality of Swakopmund

Municipality of Walvis Bay
Compensation to directors and other key management
Directors’ Remuneration

2 311 851

Key management

1 830 277

22 050 297

15 429 318

24 362 148

17 259 595

813 539

743 359

1 170 618

988 595

327 694

245 305

2 311 851

1 977 259

The directors’ remuneration for the current year is made up as follows:
Retainer fee
Sitting fee
Subsistence and travelling allowance
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly.
Key management of the company include:

28. RISK MANAGEMENT
Capital risk management
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
Financial risk management
The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the company’s financial
performance.
The financial risk management function is carried out by local management.
Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under
committed credit lines.
The table below analyses the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

At 30 June 2017
Borrowings

SU Hambira

M Maartens

JV Bisset

SL Araeb

F Mbango

R Shiweda

BM Hoabeb

B Nangolo

N Niemand

FK Vries

At 30 June 2016

C Tjizo

R Ouseb

TP !Gaoses

KN Andima

Borrowings

H Muisoor

M Tjongarero

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables

N$

N$

N$

Less than 1

Between 1 and

Between 2 and

year

2 years

5 years

27 636 577

100 785 939

105 946 494

483 647 089

-

-

-

Less than 1

Between 1 and

Between 2 and

year

2 years

5 years

46 241 033

45 491 034

136 473 102

154 308 942

-

-

-

DL Kawana
NA Mclune

Interest rate risk

JA Geurtse

G Thiel

B Nangombe

S Muller

AL Shatona

YL Motonane

The company has determined that a change in market interest rates will have no significant
effect on assets (note 6) state at fair value and the company is not significantly exposed to fair
value interest rate risk.

BR Goraseb

CB Jacobs

DU Kuzatjike

FS Newaya
BJ Garises
RK Motonane

TI Nauyoma

HPN Kasheeta

NNJ Udjombala

B Paulse

ON Heita

A Welgemoed

Over 5 years

385 026 118

JT Hambata

RC Brandt

Over 5 years

23 203 474

RM Gomachab

FJ Nandiinotya

N$

The company has determined that a change in market interest rates will have no significant
effect on income and operating cash flow. A change will influence the interest earned on bank
and trade receivables and interest payable on interest bearing liabilities. The company is not
significantly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.
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28. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk

28. Risk management (continued)

2017

2016

N$

N$

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments
and trade debtors. The company only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit
standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

The company is not exposed to commodity price risk as the company has no financial assets
linked to commodity prices.

Cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS BY CATEGORY

The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are
neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings if available
or historical information about counterparty default rates:

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line
below:

First National Bank Namibia Limited - A1+

67 688 446

57 425 614

Bank Windhoek Limited - A1+

26 333 187

5 667 553

Standard Bank of Namibia Limited - A1+

16 735 357

40 573 549

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value

6 851 961

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk
relating to customers on an ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings
are used.
The Company has well-established credit control procedures that monitor activity on customer
accounts and allow for remedial action should the customer not comply with payment terms.
These procedures include an internal collection process; follow up with customer telephonically
or in person, negotiations of mutually acceptable payment arrangements and the issue
of a notice of disconnection of supply and letters of demand. Non-payment will result in
disconnection of supply and the customer’s account being closed. The legal collection process
is pursued thereafter.
The decision to impair overdue amounts is assessed on the probability of recovery based on the
customer’s credit risk profile.
Progress on the collection process is reviewed on a regular basis and if it is evident that the
amount will not be recovered, it is recommended for write-off in terms of the company’s
delegation of authority. The process of recovery or the costs of such action will exceed the
benefits to be derived.

231 304 096

disconnections
conversion to prepayment
use of debt collectors
payment arrangements, and
focus on early identification and letters of demand.

With respect to trade and other receivables that are neither past due no impaired, there are no
indications as of the reporting date that the debtors will not meet their payment obligations.
Interest charged on all arrear debts of N$ 1,889,290 (2016: N$ 2,164,785) was credited to profit
or loss within finance income.

N$

N$

Loans and
receivables

Fair value
through profit
or loss designated

Total

-

6 851 961

6 851 961

161 472 905

-

161 472 905

111 407 751

-

111 407 751

272 880 656

6 851 961

279 732 617

98 100 374
170 252 698

2016

Fair value
through profit
or loss designated

Loans and
receivables

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Total

-

98 100 374

Trade and other receivables

132 349 192

-

132 349 192

Cash and cash equivalents

104 380 194

-

104 380 194

236 729 386

98 100 374

334 829 760

30. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

98 100 374

2017

2016

N$

N$

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Total

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line below:
2017
Other financial liabilities

230 709 023

230 709 023

Trade and other payables

483 647 091

483 647 091

714 356 114

714 356 114

In addition the following strategies are currently in operation and are successful of non-paying
customers. These include:
•
•
•
•
•

N$

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Trade receivables
Trade and other receivables

2017

Trade and other receivables

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty
default rates:
FNB Namibia Unit Trusts Money Market Fund

The company does not operate in foreign currencies and is not exposed to foreign currency risk.
Commodity price risk

Credit quality of financial assets:
(i)

Foreign exchange risk

2016

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Total

Other financial liabilities

270 992 459

270 992 459

Trade and other payables

385 026 118

385 026 118

656 018 577

656 018 577
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2016

N$

N$

31. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION

32. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
32.1

Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

Fair value hierarchy

In the current year, the company has not adopted any standards and interpretations that are
effective for the current financial year and that are relevant to its operations.

The table below analyses assets and liabilities carried at fair value. The different levels are
defined as follows:

•

Amendment to IFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

01 January 2016

•

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

01 January 2016

•

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants

01 January 2016

•

Amendment to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

01 January 2016

•

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

01 January 2016

•

Amendment to IFRS 5: Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations:
Annual Improvements project

01 January 2016

•

Amendment to IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Annual Improvements project

01 January 2016

•

Amendment to IAS 19: Employee Benefits: Annual Improvements project

01 January 2016

•

Amendment to IAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting. Annual Improvements project

01 January 2016

•

Disclosure Initiative: Amendment to IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements

01 January 2016

Level 1: Quoted unadjusted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
company can access at measurement date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Levels of fair value measurements
Level 2
Recurring fair value measurements
Assets
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
FNB Namibia Unit Trust Money Market Fund

6 851 961

98 100 374

6 851 961

98 100 374

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the statement of financial position date.
Level 3

32.2

Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which
have been published and are mandatory for the company’s accounting periods beginning on
or after 01 July 2017 or later periods. The company have not yet assessed the impact of the
following standards and interpretations:
Effective date:

Recurring fair value measurements

Standard/ Interpretation:

Assets

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

01 January 2018

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

01 January 2018

Trade and other receivables

231 304 096

170 252 698

222 283 005

240 402 823

21 114 311

19 679 440

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

243 397 316

260 082 263

Trade and other payables

483 647 089

385 026 116

(495 740 309)

98 100 374

Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Development Bank of Namibia
National Energy Fund

Total

Years beginning on or after
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Contact us
+264 64 214 600/1
+264 64 214 602
pr@erongored.com.na
www.erongored.com
Hage Geingob Avenue
Walvis Bay, Namibia

Follow us
www.facebook.com/erongored
www.twitter.com/erongo_red
www.linkedin.com/company/18220620/
www.instagram.com/erongo_red

Get more online
This annual report can be viewed on,
or downloaded from our website at
www.erongored.com.

